
 
 

City Council Work Session Agenda 

April 25, 2023 

6:00 PM 

The City Council Meeting will begin at 6:30pm after a celebration honoring Councilor Adam 

Keaton on his final day. A quorum might be present, but no City business will be discussed. 

 

Mayor: Robert Duncan 

Council President: Mike Caughey 

Councilors: Kimberly Downey, Robert Boese, Adam Keaton, Randy Klemm, and 

Charlotte Thomas. 

Meeting Location: Harrisburg Municipal Center Located at 354 Smith St 

 

PUBLIC NOTICES: 
 

1. This meeting is open to the public and will be tape-recorded. 
2. Copies of the Staff Reports or other written documents relating to each item on the agenda are 

on file in the office of the City Recorder and are available for public inspection. 
3. All matters on the Consent Agenda are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion.  

Any member of the public can request that a matter be removed from the Consent Agenda for 
discussion.  It will then be discussed under the “Other” part of the meeting schedule. 

4. The City Hall Council Chambers are handicapped accessible.  Persons with disabilities wishing 
accommodations, including assisted listening devices and sign language assistance are 
requested to contact City Hall at 541-995-6655, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting date.  If a 
meeting is held with less than 48 hours’ notice, reasonable effort shall be made to have an 
interpreter present.  The requirement for an interpreter does not apply to an emergency meeting.  
ORS 192.630(5) 

5. Persons contacting the City for information requiring accessibility for deaf, hard of hearing, or 
speech-impaired persons, can use TTY 711; call 1-800-735-1232, or for Spanish voice TTY, call 
1-800-735-3896. 

6. The City of Harrisburg does not discriminate against individuals with disabilities, and is an equal 
opportunity provider. 

7. For information regarding items of discussion on this agenda, please contact City Recorder Lori 
Ross, at 541-995-6655 

8. Masks are not required currently.  The City does ask anyone running a fever, having an active 
cough or other respiratory issues not to attend this meeting.   

9. If you wish to testify and are unable to attend due to health concerns, please contact the City 
Recorder to be placed on a Conference Call list during the meeting.  
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CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL by Mayor, Robert Duncan 

CONCERNED CITIZEN(S) IN THE AUDIENCE. (Please limit presentation to two minutes per 
issue.) 

LCSO REPORT 

1. THE MATTER OF MEETING WITH A MEMBER REPRESENTATIVE FROM LCSO IF ONE 
IS AVAILABLE 

STAFF REPORT:  

  Exhibit A: LCSO City Report March 2023 
                               

ACTION:        DISCUSSION ONLY 
 

COBURG POLICE TRAFFIC ENFORCEMENT REPORT 

2. THE MATTER OF MEETING WITH A MEMBER REPRESENTATIVE FROM THE 
COBURG POLICE DEPARTMENT IF ONE IS AVAILABLE 

STAFF REPORT:  

  Exhibit A: Coburg 2023 1st Quarter Stats Report 

                                                                                  

ACTION:        DISCUSSION ONLY 
 

NEW BUSINESS 

3. THE MATTER OF DISCUSSING THE HARRISBURG FISCAL YEAR 2021-2022 AUDIT 
REPORT WITH THE AUDITOR, STEVE TUCHSCHERER 

STAFF REPORT:         

                       Exhibit A: FY 2021-2022 Audit Report 
 

ACTION:        MOTION TO APPROVE THE CITY’S FISCAL YEAR 2021-2022 AUDIT 
REPORT, AS PRESENTED BY THE AUDITOR STEVE TUCHSCHERER 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AN EXECUTIVE SESSION UNDER ORS 192.660 (1)(2)(H) WILL NOW BE OPENED 

“TO CONSULT WITH COUNSEL CONCERNING THE LEGAL RIGHTS AND 

DUTIES OF A PUBLIC BODY WITH REGARD TO CURRENT LITIGATION OR 

LITIGATION LIKELY TO BE FILED.”  

 

City Council will recess at this time to begin the HRA Board Meeting 
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4. THE MATTER OF A DISCUSSION IN EXECUTIVE SESSION UNDER ORS 
192.660(1)(2)(H), IN RELATION TO ESTABLISHING OBJECTIVELY REASONABLE 
TIME, PLACE AND MANNER (TPM) RESTRICTIONS IN RELATION TO CAMPING AND 
TO SITTING, SLEEPING, AND LYING DOWN ON PUBLIC PROPERTY IN HARRISBURG 

ACTION:        DISCUSSION & TBD 

 

OTHER ITEMS 

ADJOURN 
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Agenda Bill 
Harrisburg City Council 

Harrisburg, Oregon 
 
 

 

THE MATTER OF MEETING WITH A MEMBER REPRESENTATIVE FROM LCSO 
IF ONE IS AVAILABLE 

STAFF REPORT:  

   Exhibit A: LCSO City Report March 2023 

                                 

                                 

ACTION:                 DISCUSSION ONLY 
 

 

THIS AGENDA BILL IS DESTINED FOR: Work Session Agenda - April 25, 2023 
 

BUDGET IMPACT 

COST BUDGETED? SOURCE OF FUNDS 

N/A N/A N/A 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommend that City Council review the attached reports and prepare any 
questions for LCSO Staff.  
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
Sergeant Frambes will be providing the March 2023 (EXHIBIT A) Linn County Sheriff 
Office City Report this evening.  Sergeant Steve Frambes provides the City with both the 
LCSO City Report and the Contract Report for the previous month’s activities.  If the 
reports are provided in time for the agenda process, they will be attached as exhibits.  If 
they are provided after that point, but prior to the meeting, then Staff will forward them via 
email to Council members and will print them in time for the meeting.  (LCSO Reports not 
appearing in the Council Agendas will be provided in the Minutes for that meeting 
instead.)  This process gives Council the chance to review responses and actions in 
relation to both criminal and non-criminal activities by LCSO deputies in town monthly.   
 
 
REVIEW AND APPROVAL: 
 
                                                      04/19/2023 
Lori Ross/ City Recorder                Date 
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LINN COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 

Michelle Duncan, Sheriff 
1115 S.E. Jackson Street, Albany, OR 97322 

Albany, OR. 97322 
Phone: 541-967-3950 
www.linnsheriff.org 

2023 

MONTHLY REPORT TO THE CITY OF HARRISBURG 

FROM THE LINN COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE 

FOR THE MONTH OF:  MARCH 

TRAFFIC CITATIONS: --------------------------------------------- 

13  

TRAFFIC WARNINGS: ---------------------------------------------   25  

TRAFFIC CRASHES: ------------------------------------------------    3 

ARRESTS MADE:   ---------------------------------------------------    5 

COMPLAINTS/INCIDENTS INVESTIGATED:---------------   153 

TOTAL HOURS SPENT:   HARRISBURG 

287.50 hours   

CONTRACT HOURS= 275 HOURS 

Michelle Duncan, 

Sheriff, Linn County 

By: Sgt. Steven Frambes 
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MONTHLY BULLETIN OF DISPATCHED 

CALLS AND CASES

FOR CONTRACT CITIES

This Report Encompasses: 3/ 1/23 to 3/31/23

 153Total Incidents This Month:

Incident Information: Description

2023038917 911 HANG UP CALL Reported at Block of 1000 APPLEGATE PL HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/1/2023   6:14:57PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Accidental dial

2023039004 SUSPICIOUS CIRCUMSTANCE Reported at Block of 300 LASALLE ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/1/2023   8:46:41PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Vehicle reported as suspicious.  Deputy did not find anyone in the area and did not find any 

criminal activity.  

HARRISBURG

2023039196 JUVENILE COMPLAINT Reported at Block of 600 SMITH ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/2/2023   9:56:53AM

CAD Only

HBRG

Caller had questions regarding school discipline.  

CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023039222 Report Filed. MENTAL HOLD BY POLICE OFFICER-POH Reported At Block Of 800  

SOMMERVILLE LOOP Occurred between 1025 hours on 3/2/2023  and 1025 hours on 

CAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/2/2023  10:25:24AM

2300853

HBRG

Deputies transported a male suffering from mental illness to the hospital . The male was 

admitted as a Police Officer Hold.  

REPORT TAKEN

2023039242 SUSPICIOUS VEHICLE Reported at Block of 100 SCHOOLING ST/S 1ST ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/2/2023  10:43:59AM

CAD Only

HBRG

Area check for a suspicious vehicle.  

UTL GOA

Page 1 of 27
Page 6

1.



Incident Information: Description

2023039306 WELFARE CHECK Reported at Block of 200 N 3RD ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/2/2023  12:25:21PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Welfare check on juveniles.  

CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023039340 DOMESTIC DISTURBANCE Reported at Block of 600 DEMPSEY ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/2/2023   1:31:49PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Deputies mediated a verbal argument between partners

CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023039428 NOISE DISTURBANCE Reported at Block of 600 SMITH ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/2/2023   3:35:12PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Deputy spoke with a caller about a noise complaint.  

CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023039840 CITY ORDINANCE VIOLATION Reported at Block of 200 KESLING ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/3/2023   9:04:22AM

CAD Only

HBRG

DEPUTY CONTACTED FEMALE LIVING OUT OF HER CAR LIVING ON CITY 

STREETS. WAS ADVISED OF MUNICIPAL CODE.  

CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023039953 TRAFFIC STOP Reported at Block of 200 MONROE ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/3/2023  11:42:27AM

CAD Only

HBRG Distracted driving warning.  

WARNING ISSUED

2023039991 TRAFFIC STOP Reported at Block of 800 S 3RD ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/3/2023  12:24:50PM

CAD Only

HBRG B. Ellison (23 y/o) of Springfield issued citation for fail to renew vehicle registration and

warned for fail to carry insurance card.

CITE MOVING VIOLATION

Page 2 of 27
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Incident Information: Description

2023040530 ALARM LAW ONLY Reported at Block of 800 S 2ND ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/4/2023   8:17:49AM

CAD Only

HBRG

Received authorized cancel prior to arrival.

CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023040603 REPORT PENDING. Original Call Type: FRAUD Reported At Block Of 300  N 3RD ST 

Occurred between 1111 hours on 3/4/2023  and 1111 hours on 3/4/2023  . Reported: 3/4/2023  

CAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/4/2023  11:11:26AM

2300874

HBRG

Manager of Dollar General reporting a scam which allowed two men to walk away with 

$1,000 on gift cards  

REPORT TAKEN

2023040604 FOUND DOG Reported at Block of 400 N 7TH ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/4/2023  11:11:48AM

CAD Only

HBRG

Caller found a stray dog. Gave it's description then let it go again. 

2023040708 MENTAL HEALTH Reported at Block of 700 TERRITORIAL ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/4/2023   2:23:51PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Verbal argument. The male half called an Uber and left for the night.

CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023040798 DOMESTIC DISTURBANCE Reported at Block of 500 S 3RD ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/4/2023   4:55:57PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Report of a disturbance. No disturbance was located and parties denied any prior 

disturbance.  

HARRISBURG

2023040825 Report Filed. INFO-OTHER DOCUMENTATION Reported At Block Of 700  ERICA WAY 

Occurred between 1800 hours on 3/4/2023  and 1801 hours on 3/4/2023  . Reported: 

CAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/4/2023   6:01:11PM

2300879

HBRG

A 13 year old juvenile was caught with a vape pen.  The juvenile is not on probation yet, but 

has a signed agreement with them about "being clean".  Info report to be sent to the Juvenile 

Dept.  

REPORT TAKEN

Page 3 of 27
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Incident Information: Description

2023040894 SUICIDAL SUBJECT Reported at Block of 800 S 9TH ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/4/2023   8:05:59PM

CAD Only

HBRG

A complaint was taken for a possible suicidal female.  The caller and a house guest were 

contacted, and a BOLO Teletype was sent out.  Springfield PD immediately responded that 

they were with the female at her workplace and she was being transported to a hospital for 

care and evaluation.  CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023041259 JUVENILE COMPLAINT Reported at Block of 700 ERICA WAY HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/5/2023  10:46:30AM

CAD Only

HBRG

Juvenile wanted to leave the house to, "Get high."  Deputy spoke with the father about his 

options as a parent.  

HARRISBURG

2023041271 911 HANG UP CALL Reported at Block of 400 TERRITORIAL ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/5/2023  11:02:13AM

CAD Only

HBRG

Accidental dial.

2023041348 SUSPICIOUS CIRCUMSTANCE Reported at Block of 300 LASALLE ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/5/2023   1:05:34PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Citizen reported people staying in a storage unit.  Deputy contacted the individuals and 

learned the owner had given them permission to stay for a short period of time.  Non-criminal.  

HARRISBURG

2023041366 SUICIDAL SUBJECT Reported at Block of 800 S 3RD ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/5/2023   1:35:56PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Anonymous caller reported a 13 yo who was going to jump off a bridge.  Deputy learned the 

juvenile was safe at home and had never gone to the bridge.  Deputy spoke with the juvenile 

and his parents about the incident and safety.  Non-criminal.  

HARRISBURG

2023041493 MVC NON INJURY Reported at Block of 1000 SOMMERVILLE LOOP HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/5/2023   5:09:40PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Teen driver took a gravel corner too fast, lost control, and ended up in a muddy ditch and 

into a wire animal fence.  

CAD CALL COMPLETE
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Incident Information: Description

2023041529 TRANSFER 911 INFO - LAW CALL Reported at Block of 400 TERRITORIAL ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/5/2023   6:38:33PM

CAD Only

HBRG

CALL TRANSFERRED TO OTHER AGY

2023041542 TRAFFIC STOP Reported at Block of 300 N 3RD ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/5/2023   7:03:37PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Operator cited for DWS -Violation and for No insurance.  

CITE NO INSURANCE

2023041562 EXTRA PATROL Reported at Block of 300 SOMMERVILLE AVE HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/5/2023   7:38:53PM

CAD Only

HBRG

EXTRA PATROL

2023041581 TRAFFIC STOP Reported at Block of 700 LASALLE ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/5/2023   8:03:04PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Operator warned for FTO TCD when traveling east on LaSalle and crossing S 6th St w/out 

fully stopping.  

WARNING MOVING VIOLATION

2023041596 TRAFFIC STOP Reported at Block of 600 S 6TH ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/5/2023   8:29:36PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Operator warned for FTO TCD when traveling east on LaSalle and not coming to a complete 

stop when crossing S 6th St.  

WARNING MOVING VIOLATION

2023041608 TRAFFIC STOP Reported at Block of 500 LASALLE ST/S 6TH ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/5/2023   8:42:59PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Operator warned for FTO TCD when turning right (south) onto S 6th St from LaSalle St.  

WARNING MOVING VIOLATION
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Incident Information: Description

2023041697 SUSPICIOUS VEHICLE Reported at Block of 300 N 3RD ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/5/2023  11:37:30PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Vehicle was parked at the gas station and was unoccupied.  The caller was contacted and 

will speak with the gas station mgmt in the morning.  

CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023042077 SUSPICIOUS VEHICLE Reported at Block of 100 LASALLE ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/6/2023   1:34:40PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Caller reports suspicious vehicle, vehicle left area prior to deputy arrival.  

CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023042287 SUSPICIOUS VEHICLE Reported at Block of 1000 WHITLEDGE PL HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/6/2023   6:11:42PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Owner was parked in area visiting friend.  

CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023042438 TRAFFIC STOP Reported at Block of 800 S 6TH ST/SOMMERVILLE LOOP HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/6/2023  11:23:40PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Driver warned for no rear plate and fail to renew registration  

WARNING EQUIPMENT VIOLATION

2023042464 911 HANG UP CALL Reported at Block of 400 TERRITORIAL ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/7/2023   1:20:10AM

CAD Only

HBRG

No Public Narrative.

2023042466 TRAFFIC STOP Reported at Block of 300 LASALLE ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/7/2023   1:28:03AM

CAD Only

HBRG

Driver cited for DWS-Vio and warned for failure to renew registration.  

CITE DWS NO ODL
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Incident Information: Description

2023042480 TRAFFIC STOP Reported at Block of 300 N 7TH ST/QUINCY ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/7/2023   2:21:30AM

CAD Only

HBRG

Driver warned for tinted tail lights  

WARNING EQUIPMENT VIOLATION

2023042496 Report Filed. THEFT 2 - OTHER Reported At Block Of 800  SOMMERVILLE LOOP Occurred 

between 1025 hours on 3/2/2023  and 1025 hours on 3/2/2023  . Reported: 3/2/2023   Officer 

CAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/7/2023   3:26:45AM

2300923

HBRG

Deputies investigated a theft on 03/01/2023. Duplicate call was created for a case number.  

REPORT TAKEN

2023042800 Report Filed. BURGLARY 2 - BUSINESS Reported At Block Of 200  N 3RD ST Occurred 

between 1213 hours on 3/7/2023  and 1307 hours on 3/7/2023  . Reported: 3/7/2023   Officer 

CAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/7/2023   1:07:38PM

2300930

HBRG

Business owner reports $1,200.00 in damage. A female tried to pry open a coin machine 
to the laundry mat

REPORT TAKEN

2023042833 TRAFFIC HAZARD Reported at Block of 300 MOORE ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/7/2023   1:50:52PM

CAD Only

HBRG

deputy removed construction cone from roadway  

CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023042834 TRAFFIC HAZARD Reported at Block of 300 MOORE ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/7/2023   1:50:52PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Deputy removes construction cone from middle of road way  

CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023042938 WELFARE CHECK Reported at Block of 400 N 7TH ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/7/2023   4:24:21PM

CAD Only

HBRG

A concerned caller requests a welfare check on her friend . Deputy preforms a welfare check, 

the person informed the deputy they were well and needed no assistance from law 

enforcement.  

CAD CALL COMPLETE
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Incident Information: Description

2023042988 CIVIL DISPUTE REPORT Reported at Block of 300 S 9TH ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/7/2023   5:43:06PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Caller requests to speak to a deputy about property during a divorce.  

CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023043060 SUSPICIOUS PERSON Reported at Block of 300 N 3RD ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/7/2023   8:11:48PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Deputies give courtesy ride to bus station  

CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023043170 SUSPICIOUS PERSON Reported at Block of 200 MONROE ST/N 3RD ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/8/2023   1:14:59AM

CAD Only

HBRG

Deputies attempt to speak with suspicious person.  Female refused to speak to Deputies  

2023043173 BUSINESS CHECK Reported at Block of 100 N 3RD ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/8/2023   1:20:20AM

CAD Only

HBRG

Business was secure  

CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023043177 Report Filed. PAROLE VIOLATION - WARRANT Reported At Block Of 400  TERRITORIAL 

ST Occurred between 0131 hours on 3/8/2023  and 0132 hours on 3/8/2023  . Reported: 

CAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/8/2023   1:32:21AM

2300936

HBRG

Kayla Brooks (27), of Junction City, was arrested on a parole board warrant.  

REPORT TAKEN

2023043178 SUSPICIOUS PERSON Reported at Block of 100 N 4TH ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/8/2023   1:34:33AM

CAD Only

HBRG

Related to parole violation call above. 

CAD CALL COMPLETE
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Incident Information: Description

2023043355 INFORMATION ONLY REPORT Reported at Block of 800 S 3RD ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/8/2023  10:46:28AM

CAD Only

HBRG

Caller wanted a deputy to document their vehicles mirror striking another vehicles mirror in 

passing. A deputy documented the information.  

CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023043412 TRAFFIC STOP Reported at Block of 100 N 3RD ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/8/2023  12:25:07PM

CAD Only

HBRG

J. Lycett (39) of Harrisburg was issued a citation for driving while suspended violation.

WARNING ISSUED

2023043686 TRAFFIC STOP Reported at Block of 400 S 3RD ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/8/2023   7:04:09PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Driver warned or no plates. Plates were on seat when stopped.  

WARNING ISSUED

2023043721 TRAFFIC STOP Reported at Block of 700 S 3RD ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/8/2023   8:15:16PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Driver stopped for license plate issues. Verbal warning given.  

WARNING ISSUED

2023043728 TRAFFIC STOP Reported at Block of 600 SMITH ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/8/2023   8:32:40PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Driver stopped for failure to obey traffic control device . Driver given warning.  

WARNING ISSUED

2023043738 TRAFFIC STOP Reported at Block of 300 N 3RD ST/PEORIA RD HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/8/2023   8:48:28PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Joshua Spencer, 34 of Harrisburg was cited for DWS Violation and driving uninsured.  

CITATION ISSUED
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Incident Information: Description

2023043770 Report Filed. DISORDERLY CONDUCT 2 Reported At Block Of 200  SMITH ST Occurred 

between 2158 hours on 3/8/2023  and 2158 hours on 3/8/2023  . Reported: 3/8/2023   Officer 

CAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/8/2023   9:58:38PM

2300951

HBRG

Erica Nicole Odjeda, 34 of Harrisburg was arrested for Disorderly Conduct II and Obstructing 

Governmental or Judicial Administration. Erica was transported to and lodged at The Linn 

County Jail.  

REPORT TAKEN

2023044044 INFORMATION ONLY REPORT Reported at Block of 500 LASALLE ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/9/2023  10:29:41AM

CAD Only

HBRG

Assisted local business with a registration document.  

CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023044048 REPORT PENDING. Original Call Type: MINOR IN POSSESSION Reported At Block Of 200  

S 6TH ST Occurred between 1035 hours on 3/9/2023  and 1035 hours on 3/9/2023  . 

CAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/9/2023  10:35:26AM

2300960

HBRG

Deputy responded to a minor in possession of marijuana.  

REPORT TAKEN

2023044099 FOUND PROPERTY Reported at Block of 100 SMITH ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/9/2023  11:59:27AM

CAD Only

HBRG

Citizen turned in a found wallet which was returned to the rightful owner.  

CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023044547 ALARM LAW ONLY Reported at Block of 800 S 2ND ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/10/2023   4:42:22AM

CAD Only

HBRG

No Public Narrative.

2023044965 SHOTS HEARD Reported at Block of 200 SOMMERVILLE AVE HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/10/2023   5:18:05PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Caller reports hearing what possibly sounded like gunshots coming from a vehicle near the 

ponds. A deputy arrived and contacted the driver and the driver informed the deputy they do 

not have a firearm. 

CAD CALL COMPLETE
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Incident Information: Description

2023045143 SUSPICIOUS VEHICLE Reported at Block of 900 S 9TH ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/10/2023  10:51:35PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Deputy patrolled the area for a reported suspicious vehicle but was unable to locate it. Will 

patrol the area as time allows.  

CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023045197 Report Filed. MISSING PERSON Reported At Block Of 300  TERRITORIAL ST Occurred 

between 1200 hours on 2/24/2023 and 0018 hours on 3/11/2023 . Reported: 3/11/2023  

CAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/11/2023  12:18:58AM

2300984

HBRG

Deputy contacted suspicious vehicle and located a reported missing adult out of Hillsboro. 

The individual was fine and needed no assistance. The entering agency was notified.  

REPORT TAKEN

2023045404 POCKET DIAL LCSO AND CRCC Reported at Block of 1000 S 6TH ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/11/2023  11:08:17AM

CAD Only

HBRG

No Public Narrative.

2023045436 Report Filed. ACCIDENT VEHICLE NO INJ Reported At Block Of 200  LASALLE ST/S 3RD 

ST Occurred between 1202 hours on 3/11/2023 and 1203 hours on 3/11/2023 . Reported: 

CAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/11/2023  12:03:12PM

2300988

HBRG

Brooks Buchakjan 33 of Harrisburg was involved a non-injury vehicle crash involving John 

Robertson 74 of Eugene. Deputy arrived and conducted a crash investigation. Both vehicles 

were towed from the scene. Drivers informed to report crash to Oregon DMV.  

REPORT TAKEN

2023045466CAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/11/2023  12:47:10PM

2300990

HBRG

Juvenile from Harrisburg was found to be in possession of marijuana during a reported 

juvenile complaint. Report will be forwarded to the Juvenile department.  

REPORT TAKEN

2023045472 JUVENILE COMPLAINT Reported at Block of 500 SMITH ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/11/2023  12:51:01PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Juvenile from Harrisburg was found to be in possession of marijuana during a reported 

juvenile complaint. Report will be forwarded to the Juvenile department.  

CAD CALL COMPLETE
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Incident Information: Description

2023045589 TRESPASS Reported at Block of 200 N 3RD ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/11/2023   3:56:42PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Male causing a scene left the property prior to arrival.  

CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023045794 TRAFFIC STOP Reported at Block of 100 MOORE ST/S 1ST ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/11/2023  10:11:33PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Driver warned no front plate  

WARNING EQUIPMENT VIOLATION

2023045994 NON 911 ISSUE Reported at Block of 900 LASALLE ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/12/2023   9:38:51AM

CAD Only

HBRG

No Public Narrative.

2023046071 ANIMAL COMPLAINT Reported at Block of 600 TERRITORIAL ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/12/2023  12:21:09PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Deputy spoke with caller about an animal complaint. Ex-spouses wanted each other to care 

for a cat belonging to their shared child. Non criminal.  

CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023046425 BURGLARY Reported at Block of 200 SMITH ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/13/2023  12:34:17AM

CAD Only

HBRG

Deputies check on open door at post office.  Building appeared clear and was secure.  No 

damage was found  

CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023046500 WELFARE CHECK Reported at Block of 600 N 9TH ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/13/2023   6:32:44AM

CAD Only

HBRG

Deputies responded to a parenting matter.  

CAD CALL COMPLETE
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Incident Information: Description

2023046941 DOMESTIC DISTURBANCE Reported at Block of 500 DEMPSEY CT HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/13/2023   7:01:57PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Verbal dispute between juvenile and mother. Non-criminal issue.  

CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023047091 TRAFFIC STOP Reported at Block of 300 SMITH ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/13/2023  11:50:37PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Ryan Harnish, 40 of Harrisburg was cited for ORS 806.010 Driving uninsured, ORS 811.175 

DWS Violation and ORS 8053.455 Fail to renew vehicle registration with a written warning for 

ORS 811.265 Failure to obey traffic control device.  

CITATION ISSUED

2023047119 TRAFFIC STOP Reported at Block of 500 LASALLE ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/14/2023   1:09:05AM

CAD Only

HBRG

Driver contacted for driving with no front plate on vehicle, warning issued  

WARNING ISSUED

2023047123 TRAFFIC STOP Reported at Block of 400 S 3RD ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/14/2023   1:29:40AM

CAD Only

HBRG

Moving violation warning.  

WARNING ISSUED

2023047350 JUVENILE COMPLAINT Reported at Block of 500 DEMPSEY CT HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/14/2023  10:55:26AM

CAD Only

HBRG

Caller had questions regarding their juvenile son. A deputy answered the questions for them.  

CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023047559 EXTRA PATROL Reported at Block of 300 SOMMERVILLE AVE HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/14/2023   3:08:11PM

CAD Only

HBRG

EXTRA PATROL
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Incident Information: Description

2023047593 EXTRA PATROL Reported at Block of 600 SMITH ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/14/2023   3:43:21PM

CAD Only

HBRG

EXTRA PATROL

2023047976 LITTERING VIOLATION Reported at Block of 100 SMITH ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/15/2023   8:21:35AM

CAD Only

HBRG

Caller asks Deputy to check on person sleeping in park, and dumping trash. Deputy speaks 

to person, informs person they need to clean up the trash, and gave resources to clean up 

the trash. The person cleaned up the trash, disposed of it properly and left the park.  

CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023048003 911 HANG UP CALL Reported at Block of 400 TERRITORIAL ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/15/2023   9:00:08AM

CAD Only

HBRG

No Public Narrative.

2023048196 FOLLOW UP Reported at Block of 300 N 3RD ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/15/2023   1:23:19PM

CAD Only

HBRG

A known Harrisburg female resident was permanently trespassed from Dollar General. 

CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023048355 DOMESTIC DISTURBANCE Reported at Block of 200 LASALLE ST/S 3RD ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/15/2023   4:18:11PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Deputies checked the area for a vehicle involved in a reported domestic disturbance. 

Deputies checked the area but were unable to locate the vehicle.  

CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023048633 Report Filed. HARASSMENT PHYSICAL CONTACT/SIMPLE ASSAULT Reported At Block 

Of 800  BURTON ST Occurred between 0031 hours on 3/16/2023 and 0032 hours on 

CAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/16/2023  12:32:28AM

2301058

HBRG

Ashton Wagoner (25), of Harrisburg, was arrested for harassment.  

REPORT TAKEN
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Incident Information: Description

2023048744 ALARM LAW ONLY Reported at Block of 900 HEATHER TURN HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/16/2023   8:17:24AM

CAD Only

HBRG

Deputy responds to alarm, the owner of the residence was home and said the alarm was 

triggered by mistake.  

CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023048786 REPORT PENDING. Original Call Type: CRIMINAL MISCHIEF Reported At Block Of 200  S 

6TH ST Occurred between 0930 hours on 3/16/2023 and 0930 hours on 3/16/2023 . 

CAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/16/2023   9:30:11AM

2301065

HBRG

Deputy responded to a report of a damaged field at the middle school. School staff wanted the at fault 
driver trespassed for 120 days, which was communicated to the suspect.  

REPORT TAKEN

2023049314 DOMESTIC DISTURBANCE Reported at Block of 500 KESLING ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/16/2023   9:10:11PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Argument between partners. Non - criminal  

CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023049348 DISTURBANCE Reported at Block of 500 KESLING ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/16/2023  10:32:18PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Verbal dispute between partners. Non - criminal.  

CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023049836 TRAFFIC COMPLAINT Reported at Block of 800 CRIMSON PL HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/17/2023   3:31:16PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Deputy spoke to a male at his house about riding dirt bikes on city streets and the consequences if 
caught.

CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023049925 FOLLOW UP Reported at Block of 400 S 9TH ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/17/2023   5:39:32PM

CAD Only

HBRG

CAD CALL COMPLETE
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Incident Information: Description

2023049953 POCKET DIAL LCSO AND CRCC Reported at Block of 1000 SIUSLAW ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/17/2023   6:09:37PM

CAD Only

HBRG

2023050186 MENTAL HEALTH Reported at Block of 800 S 9TH ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/17/2023  11:37:46PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Deputies respond to Male having a mental health issue. The male was transported via 

ambulance to a nearby hospital and treated.  

CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023050466 ALARM LAW ONLY Reported at Block of 100 N 7TH ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/18/2023  10:22:45AM

CAD Only

HBRG

Residential alarm went off, all was secure.  

CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023050855 NOISE DISTURBANCE Reported at Block of 1000 APPLEGATE PL HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/18/2023   7:41:36PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Noise complaint.  Deputy contacted the property owner who had a Latin band for his 

mother`s birthday party.  Music was turned down by neighborhood request.  

HARRISBURG

2023051137 REPORT PENDING. Original Call Type: SUSPICIOUS CIRCUMSTANCE Reported At Block 

Of 800  S 8TH ST Occurred between 0341 hours on 3/19/2023 and 0341 hours on 3/19/2023 

CAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/19/2023   3:41:19AM

2301104

HBRG

Deputy responded to suspicious circumstance of shots heard.  

REPORT TAKEN

2023051278 DOG COMPLAINT Reported at Block of 100 MOORE ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/19/2023  12:01:25PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Male Boxer dog found running at large near S 1st St / Moore St in Harrisburg.  Taken to Dog 

Control.  

CAD CALL COMPLETE
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Incident Information: Description

2023051504 SUICIDAL SUBJECT Reported at Block of 600 TERRITORIAL ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/19/2023   8:02:15PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Crisis line reported a suicidal male.  Deputy contacted the male and spoke with him for over 

an hour and a half about life.  Deputy learned the male did not want to hurt or kill himself and 

just wanted someone to talk to.  

HARRISBURG

2023051810 POCKET DIAL LCSO AND CRCC Reported at Block of 800 S 3RD ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/20/2023  10:25:44AM

CAD Only

HBRG

Child got ahold of parents phone.

2023051976 REPORT PENDING. Original Call Type: INFORMATION ONLY REPORT Reported At Block 

Of 800  ARBOR CT Occurred between 1510 hours on 3/20/2023 and 1510 hours on 

CAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/20/2023   3:10:25PM

2301128

HBRG

Caller reports the buyer of their motor home valued at $500.00 stopped making payments 

and they can not get a hold of the buyer anymore. A deputy responds and informs caller it is 

a civil matter, informs  them of the civil processes.  

REPORT TAKEN

2023052094 SUSPICIOUS CIRCUMSTANCE Reported at Block of 700 SOMMERVILLE LOOP HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/20/2023   5:47:19PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Homeowners mailbox hit by vehicle  Owner did not want to be a victim.  NFA  

CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023052178 TRANSFER 911 INFO - LAW CALL Reported at Block of 400 N 6TH ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/20/2023   8:37:54PM

CAD Only

HBRG

CALL TRANSFERRED TO OTHER AGY

2023052288 ALARM LAW ONLY Reported at Block of 23600 PEORIA RD HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/21/2023   5:41:06AM

CAD Only

HBRG

False alarm  

FALSE ALARM POLICE
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Incident Information: Description

2023052543 Report Filed. DEATH INVESTIGATION Reported At Block Of 100  MONROE ST Occurred 

between 1300 hours on 3/21/2023 and 1300 hours on 3/21/2023 . Reported: 3/21/2023  

CAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/21/2023   1:00:23PM

2301133

HBRG

Deputies investigated the death of a 71-year-old female. There were no indicators of foul play. 

Report to follow.  

REPORT TAKEN

2023053269 TRAFFIC COMPLAINT Reported at Block of 300 S 4TH ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/22/2023   2:44:01PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Caller reported a vehicle leaving at a high rate of speed.  

CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023053285 TRAFFIC COMPLAINT Reported at Block of 400 PEORIA RD/N 3RD ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/22/2023   3:00:26PM

CAD Only

HBRG

I took American Dr to Peoria Rd. I drove Peoria Rd to Cartney Dr. I was UTL/GOA.  

CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023053381 POCKET DIAL LCSO AND CRCC Reported at Block of 200 S 6TH ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/22/2023   5:27:31PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Accidental dial from Middle School

2023053388 ALARM LAW ONLY Reported at Block of 400 S 9TH ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/22/2023   5:43:46PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Received authorized cancel

2023053452 CITY ORDINANCE VIOLATION Reported at Block of 300 SOMMERVILLE AVE HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/22/2023   7:28:45PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Deputy contacted some individuals who were stuck in the mud near the boat ramp at Eagle Park.  

CAD CALL COMPLETE
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Incident Information: Description

2023053456 TRESPASS Reported at Block of 300 SOMMERVILLE AVE HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/22/2023   7:34:41PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Deputy contacted a male and female at Eagle Park after sunset. Warned and advised.  

CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023053472 TRESPASS Reported at Block of 300 SOMMERVILLE AVE HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/22/2023   8:04:42PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Deputy contacted a male and female at Eagle Park after hours. Warned and advised.  

CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023053479 TRAFFIC STOP Reported at Block of 200 S 1ST ST/MACY ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/22/2023   8:19:26PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Driver stopped for illegal lighting. Warned and advised for violation and fail to carry current 

proof of insurance.  

WARNING ISSUED

2023053497 TRAFFIC STOP Reported at Block of 500 TERRITORIAL ST/N 6TH ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/22/2023   8:48:02PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Driver stopped and warned for no front license plate and burned out passenger headlight.  

WARNING ISSUED

2023053540 MVC NON INJURY Reported at Block of 100 N 3RD ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/22/2023  10:01:06PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Chandler Hope Holliday, 26, of Harrisburg, was cited for Fail to Drive Within Lane after 

crashing her vehicle into a set of road construction barrels.  

CITATION ISSUED

2023053580 CITY ORDINANCE VIOLATION Reported at Block of 100 N 1ST ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/22/2023  11:11:27PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Male contacted in his vehicle after hours in a Harrisburg Park. Male identified then warned 

and advised.  

CAD CALL COMPLETE
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Incident Information: Description

2023053700 POCKET DIAL LCSO AND CRCC Reported at Block of 300 LASALLE ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/23/2023   5:18:30AM

CAD Only

HBRG

No Public Narrative.

2023053750 TRAFFIC STOP Reported at Block of 400 S 9TH ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/23/2023   8:11:19AM

CAD Only

HBRG

FEMALE OPERATOR WARNED ABOUT SPEED  

WARNING SPEEDING VIOLATION

2023053773 TRAFFIC STOP Reported at Block of 800 S 6TH ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/23/2023   8:46:10AM

CAD Only

HBRG

JULIO LARA, 41, CITED FOR NO SEAT BELT USE  

CITE SEATBELT VIOLATION

2023053783 ALARM LAW ONLY Reported at Block of 200 SMITH ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/23/2023   9:06:15AM

CAD Only

HBRG

Received authorized cancel

CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023053820 TRAFFIC STOP Reported at Block of 400 S 6TH ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/23/2023   9:55:16AM

CAD Only

HBRG

FEMALE OPERATOR WARNED ABOUT ROLLING STOP SIGN  

WARNING MOVING VIOLATION

2023053877 REPORT PENDING. Original Call Type: FRAUD Reported At Block Of 700  ARROW LEAF 

PL Occurred between 1102 hours on 3/23/2023 and 1102 hours on 3/23/2023 . Reported: 

CAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/23/2023  11:02:42AM

2301162

HBRG

Deputy took report of a fraud. Victim sent $1,000 to suspect via apple gift cards  

REPORT TAKEN
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Incident Information: Description

2023053989 TRAFFIC STOP Reported at Block of 200 N 7TH ST/TERRITORIAL ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/23/2023   2:03:38PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Driver warned for moving violation.  

WARNING MOVING VIOLATION

2023054014 TRAFFIC STOP Reported at Block of 100 N 3RD ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/23/2023   2:25:57PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Driver warned for moving violation.  

WARNING MOVING VIOLATION

2023054042 TRAFFIC STOP Reported at Block of 400 TERRITORIAL ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/23/2023   3:08:19PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Driver warned for moving violation.  

WARNING MOVING VIOLATION

2023054093 TRAFFIC STOP Reported at Block of 200 TERRITORIAL ST/N 3RD ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/23/2023   4:25:54PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Driver warned for moving violation.  

WARNING MOVING VIOLATION

2023054281 TRAFFIC STOP Reported at Block of 300 TERRITORIAL ST/N 4TH ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/23/2023  10:11:01PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Cody Alan Benedix, 36, of Springfield, was cited for DWS – Violation and Driving Uninsured.  

CITATION ISSUED

2023054299 CITIZEN CONTACT Reported at Block of 200 N 3RD ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/23/2023  10:40:24PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Deputy contacted a homeless female in Harrisburg who was from outside the area. Deputy 

provided the female with a courtesy ride to Corvallis.  

CAD CALL COMPLETE
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Incident Information: Description

2023054388CAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/24/2023   2:00:38AM

2301174

HBRG

Kyle James Sells, 33, of Junction City, was stopped for a license plate violation. Kyle was 

arrested for DWS – Misdemeanor and three outstanding warrants. Kyle was cited on the 

offenses, as well as cited for Driving Uninsured, Fail to Use IID Device and Fail to Register a 

Vehicle.  REPORT TAKEN

2023055197 REPORT PENDING. Original Call Type: ASSAULT Reported At Block Of 200  MOORE ST 

Occurred between 1053 hours on 3/25/2023 and 1053 hours on 3/25/2023 . Reported: 

CAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/25/2023  10:53:02AM

2301190

HBRG

Caller was hit in the leg with a pipe by an acquaintance. The suspect left the location. 

Deputies contacted the caller and collected statements and video. Law enforcement 

searched the area but were unable to locate the suspect. Investigation on going.  

REPORT TAKEN

2023055232 Report Filed. TRADEMARK COUNTERFEIT 3 Reported At Block Of 200  N 3RD ST 

Occurred between 1139 hours on 3/25/2023 and 1140 hours on 3/25/2023 . Reported: 

CAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/25/2023  11:40:46AM

2301192

HBRG

Counterfeit $50.00 bill was used to pay for items at the diner.  

REPORT TAKEN

2023055265 Report Filed. WARRANT ARREST (LW ONLY) Reported At Block Of 200  MOORE ST 

Occurred between 1209 hours on 3/25/2023 and 1210 hours on 3/25/2023 . Reported: 

CAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/25/2023  12:10:51PM

2301193

HBRG

48 year old Dale Mc Cleary of Sun River was arrested on a warrant and issued a citation for 

the Benton County Circuit Court Warrant.  

REPORT TAKEN

2023055313 SUSPICIOUS CIRCUMSTANCE Reported at Block of 200 N 2ND ST/TERRITORIAL ST 

HBRG

CAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/25/2023   1:50:55PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Area check for a report of two suspicious vehicles in the area. They weren`t located.  

CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023055376 PARKING COMPLAINT Reported at Block of 300 FOUNTAIN ST/S 4TH ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/25/2023   3:50:49PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Owner advised to move their vehicle out of the road. It was parked in the road to avoid mud.  

CAD CALL COMPLETE
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Incident Information: Description

2023055737 ALARM LAW ONLY Reported at Block of 400 S 9TH ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/26/2023   9:17:24AM

CAD Only

HBRG

Deputy responds to alarm. Deputy observes no suspicious activity and no open doors. False 

alarm.  

FALSE ALARM POLICE

2023055765 SUSPICIOUS VEHICLE Reported at Block of 900 S 9TH ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/26/2023  10:05:13AM

CAD Only

HBRG

Caller reports suspicious vehicle. Deputy speaks to the driver of the vehicle, they inform the 

deputy they are currently staying outside their friends house and will move the vehicle to a 

different location.  

CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023055853 POCKET DIAL LCSO AND CRCC Reported at Block of 500 LASALLE ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/26/2023  12:44:15PM

CAD Only

HBRG

2023056103 TRAFFIC STOP Reported at Block of 500 SMITH ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/26/2023   8:47:32PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Driver warned for expired registration  

WARNING EQUIPMENT VIOLATION

2023056357 TRAFFIC STOP Reported at Block of 300 N 7TH ST/QUINCY ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/27/2023  10:46:14AM

CAD Only

HBRG

male operator given warning for speed.  

WARNING SPEEDING VIOLATION

2023056380 TRAFFIC STOP Reported at Block of 700 LASALLE ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/27/2023  11:14:28AM

CAD Only

HBRG

TOMOMI KUR0SAKI, 37, CITED FOR FTO STOP SIGN  

CITE MOVING VIOLATION
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Incident Information: Description

2023056392 TRAFFIC STOP Reported at Block of 700 S 6TH ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/27/2023  11:29:23AM

CAD Only

HBRG

MALE OPERATOR WARNED ABOUT SEAT BELT  

WARNING SEATBELT VIOLATION

2023056406 TRAFFIC STOP Reported at Block of 700 SOMMERVILLE LOOP HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/27/2023  11:47:55AM

CAD Only

HBRG

MALE OPERATOR WARNED ABOUT SPEED  

WARNING SPEEDING VIOLATION

2023056607 WELFARE CHECK Reported at Block of 100 MOORE ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/27/2023   4:30:24PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Deputy handled a domestic quarrel over a mother who felt her ex-husband was keeping their 

son from talking to her on the phone. The deputy set up a time for the family to talk civilly.  

CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023056914 TRAFFIC STOP Reported at Block of 800 DIAMOND HILL DR HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/28/2023   8:58:26AM

CAD Only

HBRG

female operator warned for speed.  

WARNING SPEEDING VIOLATION

2023056916 TRAFFIC STOP Reported at Block of 500 S 3RD ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/28/2023   8:59:33AM

CAD Only

HBRG

MALE OPERATOR WARNED ABOUT SPEED  

WARNING SPEEDING VIOLATION

2023057381 REPORT PENDING. Original Call Type: SUSPICIOUS VEHICLE Reported At Block Of 900  

S 9TH ST Occurred between 2150 hours on 3/28/2023 and 2150 hours on 3/28/2023 . 

CAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/28/2023   9:50:06PM

2301229

HBRG

Jamie Montes, 46, of Eugene, was issued a citation for driving while suspended violation, 

driving uninsured, and failure to obey a traffic control device. Jamie was also issued a written 

warning for having a white light emitting from the rear of her vehicle. Jamie’s vehicle was 

towed as a hazard.  REPORT TAKEN
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Incident Information: Description

2023057429 SUSPICIOUS CIRCUMSTANCE Reported at Block of 100 SMITH ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/28/2023  11:52:27PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Deputies respond to a suspicious circumstance. Nothing suspicious was located upon 

arrival.  

CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023057534 TRANSFER 911 INFO - LAW CALL Reported at Block of 800 S 3RD ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/29/2023   7:16:04AM

CAD Only

HBRG

CALL TRANSFERRED TO OTHER AGY

2023057685 FOLLOW UP Reported at Block of 200 MOORE ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/29/2023  11:24:25AM

CAD Only

HBRG

Video from Hurds hardware

CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023057739 THREATS Reported at Block of 700 PRICEBORO DR HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/29/2023  12:25:47PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Caller reports concerning messages from a past relationship. The caller speaks to the 

Deputy and has statements documented. No direct threats were made in the messages, 

Deputy provided a CAD number to the caller for documentation.  

CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023057797 CHILD ABUSE REPORT Reported at Block of 300 S 3RD ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/29/2023   1:23:32PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Report of a vehicle smoking marijuana with minors inside. The vehicle wasn't located 
and the caller could not provide a license plate. 

CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023058220 NON 911 ISSUE Reported at Block of 700 S 6TH ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/30/2023   3:14:49AM

CAD Only

HBRG

Accidentail dial
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Incident Information: Description

2023058226 NON 911 ISSUE Reported at Block of 400 TERRITORIAL ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/30/2023   3:50:31AM

CAD Only

HBRG

Accidental dial.

2023058447 FOLLOW UP Reported at Block of 200 MOORE ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/30/2023  12:00:23PM

CAD Only

HBRG

Hurds hardware video surveillance.

CAD CALL COMPLETE

2023058591 Report Filed. WARRANT ARREST (269) Reported At Block Of 800  SMITH ST Occurred 

between 1511 hours on 3/30/2023 and 1512 hours on 3/30/2023 . Reported: 3/30/2023  

CAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/30/2023   3:12:52PM

2301270

HBRG

Alex Gomez (27) of Toledo, was arrested on Lincoln County warrants for Rape 1 which held a 
$1,000,000.00 bail.   

REPORT TAKEN

2023059099 911 HANG UP CALL Reported at Block of 400 TERRITORIAL ST HBRGCAD#

CASE#

TIME: 3/31/2023  11:31:16AM

CAD Only

HBRG

Accidental dial
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Agenda Bill 
Harrisburg City Council 

Harrisburg, Oregon 

THE MATTER OF MEETING WITH A MEMBER REPRESENTATIVE FROM THE 
COBURG POLICE DEPARTMENT IF ONE IS AVAILABLE 

STAFF REPORT: 

Exhibit A: Coburg 2023 1st Quarter Stats Report 

ACTION:    DISCUSSION ONLY 

THIS AGENDA BILL IS DESTINED FOR: Work Session Agenda - April 25, 2023 

BUDGET IMPACT 

COST BUDGETED? SOURCE OF FUNDS 

N/A N/A N/A 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommend that City Council listen to the presentation provided by Chief 
Larry Larsen, who hopes to be present at this meeting. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
Coburg Police Chief Larry Larson provided the City with quarterly statistics for traffic 
enforcement and code enforcement services provided in Harrisburg (Exhibit A). If the 
reports are provided in time for the agenda process, they will be attached as exhibits.  If 
they are provided after that point, but prior to the meeting, then Staff will forward them via 
email to Council members and will print them in time for the meeting.  (Reports not 
appearing in the Council Agendas will be provided in the Minutes for that meeting 
instead.)  

This process gives Council the chance to review responses and actions in relation to both 
criminal and non-criminal activities by the Coburg Police Department on a quarterly basis. 
If a representative is not available, questioned can be conveyed by staff.  

REVIEW AND APPROVAL: 

 04/19/2023 
Lori Ross     Date 
City Recorder 
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First quarter January, February, March 2023: 

87 Traffic stops 

37 Citations written 

48 Written warning  

January 19 Citations  22 written warnings 43 Traffic stops 

February 10 citations  15 written warnings 25 Traffic stops 

March 8 Citations 11 written warnings  19 Traffic stops  

Officers worked Bailiff Duties for Harrisburg Municipal Court on January, February, and March. 

SOME OF THE VIOLATIONS WRITTEN CITATIONS 
26 Speeding 

6 Fail to obey a traffic control device 

3 Driving While Suspended violation 

1 window tint violation  

1 No operator’s license   

SOME OF THE TRAFFIC STOP LOCATIONS 

6th and Priceboro Road 

Spring brook mobile home Park 

9th and Diamond Hill  

4th and Fountain  

Territorial and 8th Street 

1025 6th street Harrisburg  

Territorial near rail road tracks  

3rd and Territorial  

Priceboro   
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LaSalle and 6th  

6th and Territorial  

3rd and Territorial  

Smith and Priceboro  

Erica Way Erica Place  

3rd and Monroe  

Tosta Road  

6th and Priceboro  

6th and LaSalle  

600 Territorial  

Diamond Hill and 9th  

Forest River RV plant 

9th and Diamond Hill  

Lasselle and Spring brook Mobile Home Park  

9th and Greenway  

7th and Diamond Hill  

7th and Stanley  

6th and Priceboro  

600 Erica Way  

9th and Smith  

Diamond Hill  

6th and LaSalle  

Smith and 7th  

4th and Smith  

Dollar General  
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7th and Dempsey  

3rd and Territorial  

6th and LaSalle  

3rd and Territorial  

30540 Summerville Loop 

3rd and Hwy 99  

Harrisburg Bridge  

Harrisburg City Ordinance issues 

Officers attended a city work secession regarding homelessness. 

Officers work additional issues brought to our attention by Lori or Carol.   
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Agenda Bill 
Harrisburg City Council 

Harrisburg, Oregon 
 
 

 

THE MATTER OF DISCUSSING THE HARRISBURG FISCAL YEAR 2021-2022 
AUDIT REPORT WITH THE AUDITOR, STEVE TUCHSCHERER 

STAFF REPORT:  

   Exhibit A: FY 2021-2022 Audit Report.  

 

ACTION:   MOTION TO APPROVE THE CITY’S FISCAL YEAR 2021-2022 
AUDIT REPORT, AS PRESENTED BY THE AUDITOR STEVE TUCHSCHERER. 

 

THIS AGENDA BILL IS DESTINED FOR: Work Session Agenda – April 25, 2023 
 

BUDGET IMPACT 

COST BUDGETED? SOURCE OF FUNDS 

N/A N/A N/A 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends City Council accept and approve the City of Harrisburg Fiscal Year 
2021-2022 Audit Report. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
Steve Tuchscherer and his firm audited the City's financial records for Fiscal Year 2021-2022. 
The audit report (Exhibit A) should be used to follow along with the presentation given by 
Auditor, Steve Tuchscherer. 
 
Mr. Tuchscherer will be providing his audit report via Zoom, which will be broadcast on the City 
Council Information Screens. 

 
REVIEW AND APPROVAL: 
 
 
                                     04.19.23 
Cathy Nelson  Date 
Finance Officer 
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HARRISBURG, OREGON 

Annual Financial Report 

June 30, 2022 
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Independent Auditors’ Report 
 

 

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Harrisburg, Oregon 

 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Opinions 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund, and 
the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Harrisburg as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to 
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Harrisburg’s basic financial statements, as listed in the table of con-
tents.  

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Harris-
burg as of June 30, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof, for the year then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Basis of Opinions 
 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Our responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our 
report. We are required to be independent of City of Harrisburg and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the 
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting prin-
ciples generally accepted in the United States of America; and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control rel-
evant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the ag-
gregate, that raise substantial doubt about City of Harrisburg’s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the fi-
nancial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstate-
ment, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted 
auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement result-
ing from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresen-
tations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually 
or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.
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In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statement, whether due to fraud or error, and design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding 
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Harrisburg’s internal con-
trol. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.  

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt 
about City of Harrisburg’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.  

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion on pages 1-12, 
schedules of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances – budget and actuals on pages 62-64, and the pension and OPEB 
schedules on pages 65-68 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of man-
agement and, although not a part of the basic financial statements is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who 
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, eco-
nomic, or historical context.  

We have applied certain limited procedures to the management’s discussion and analysis and the pension and OPEB schedules in ac-
cordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted principally of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s re-
sponses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial state-
ments.  We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us 
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.  

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the City’s basic fi-
nancial statements.  The schedules of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances – budget and actuals described on pages 
62-64 are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the basic financial statements.  The schedules of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances – budget and ac-
tuals have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional proce-
dures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the basic financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedules of revenues, expenditures and changes in 
fund balances – budget and actuals are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the City of Harris-
burg’s basic financial statements.  The supplementary information on pages 69-94 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and 
is not a required part of the basic financial statements of the City of Harrisburg. 

The supplementary information on pages 69-94 is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relate directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the au-
diting procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain other procedures, including comparing and reconcil-
ing such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the 
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America.  In our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the fi-
nancial statements taken as a whole.
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Other Information 

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information comprises the additional 
schedules listed in the Other Information section of the Table of Contents but does not include the basic financial statements and 
our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not cover the other information, and we do not ex-
press an opinion of any form of assurance thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and consider 
whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the basis financial statements, or the other information 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstate-
ment of the other information exists, we are required to describe it our report. 

Reports on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  

In accordance with the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, we have issued our report dated March 
8, 2023, on our consideration of the City of Harrisburg’s compliance with certain provisions of laws and regulations, including the 
provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules.  The purpose of that report is to describe the 
scope of our testing of compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the City’s compliance. 

Steve Tuchscherer, CPA 
Umpqua Valley Financial, LLC 
Roseburg, Oregon 
March 8, 2023 
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CITY OF HARRISBURG 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 Unaudited  
 

- 2 - 

The management discussion and analysis of the City of Harrisburg, Oregon (the City) financial performance provides an 
overview of the City’s financial activities for the fiscal year that ended June 30, 2022.  The intent of this discussion and 
analysis is to look at the City’s financial performance. Readers should also review the basic financial statements and notes 
to enhance their understanding of the City’s financial performance. 
 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 
Key financial highlights for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, are as follows:  
 
 The City’s net position increased by $1,460,956, which represents an 8.8% increase from the previous year. 

 
 Total revenue for the City was $4,679,312. Which represents a 6.53% increase from the previous year. General reve-

nues accounted for $2,433,820 of revenue, or 52.01% of all revenues.  Program specific revenues in the form of 
charges for services accounted for $1,631,712 or 34.87% of total revenues.  Operating grants received a total 
$613,780 or 13.12% of total revenues. There were no capital grants received this year. 

 
 The City had $3,218,356 in program expenses.  Of the program expenses, $794,468, was for providing water service 

and $836,742 was for providing sewer service. 
 
 The City’s long-term liabilities decreased by $1,177,727, a 7.68% decrease from the previous year primarily due to a 

$974,867 decrease in the net pension liability and a $200,092 decrease in bonds payable for the year. 
 
 Among the governmental funds, the General Fund had $1,693,351 in revenues, which primarily consisted of property 

taxes, franchise taxes, and grants.  The Street Fund had $293,606 in revenues, which primarily consisted of intergov-
ernmental revenues.  The Harrisburg Redevelopment Agency Fund had $566,603 in revenues, which primarily con-
sisted of property taxes.  

 
 Among proprietary funds, the Water Fund had $649,150 in operating revenues, which primarily consisted of user fees.  

The Sewer Fund had $804,911 in operating revenues, which primarily consisted of user fees.   
 
 
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis introduces the City’s basic financial statements. The basic financial statements 
include: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the basic financial state-
ments.  This report also includes additional supplementary information to supplement the basic financial statements. 
 
Government-wide Financial Statements   
 
The first of the government-wide statements is the Statement of Net Position. This is the City-wide statement of position 
presenting information that includes all of the City’s assets and liabilities.  Over time, increases or decreases in net posi-
tion may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.  Evaluation 
of the overall economic health of the City would extend to other non-financial factors such as the condition of buildings, 
and water and sewer systems facilities. 
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The second government-wide statement is the Statement of Activities which reports how the City’s net position changed 
during the current fiscal year.  All current year revenues and expenses are included regardless of when cash is received or 
paid.  An important purpose of the design of the Statement of Activities is to show the financial reliance of the City’s dis-
tinct activities or functions of the City that are principally supported by user fee revenues, intergovernmental revenues 
from grants, and property tax revenues.  The governmental activities of the City include general government activities, 
street construction and maintenance, police services, and providing resources for library, culture and recreation. The pro-
prietary activities of the City include water and sewer utilities. 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
A fund is an accountability unit used to maintain control over resources segregated for specific activities or objectives.  
The City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related laws and regulations.  Within 
the basic financial statements, Fund Financial Statements focus on the City’s most significant funds rather than the City as 
a whole. Major funds are separately reported while all others are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.  Indi-
vidual fund data for non-major funds is provided in the form of combining and individual fund statements in a later sec-
tion of this report.  The City reports two types of funds: 
 
Governmental funds, which focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end avail-
able for spending in future periods. Unlike the government-wide financial statements, these statements report short-term 
fiscal accountability focusing on use of spendable resources during the year and balances of spendable resources available 
at the end of the fiscal year. 
  
Since the government-wide focus includes the long-term view, comparisons between these two perspectives may provide 
insight into the long-term impact of short-term financing decisions.  Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the 
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to govern-
ment-wide statements to assist in understanding the differences between these two perspectives. 
 
Budgetary comparison schedules are included in the basic financial statements for the General Fund, the Community and 
Economic Development Fund, the System Development Reserve Fund, and the Harrisburg Redevelopment Agency Fund.  
Budgetary comparison schedules for the other governmental funds can be found in a later section of this report.  These 
statements and schedules demonstrate compliance with the City’s adopted and final revised budget. 
 
Proprietary funds are used to report the functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial 
statements, only in more detail.  The City maintains one type of proprietary fund - enterprise funds.  The City uses enter-
prise funds to account for water and sewer operations.  The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate infor-
mation for the Water Fund and Sewer Fund.  Included in the Water Fund for the Proprietary Statements on pages 20-22 is 
the Water System Reserve Fund.  Included in the Sewer Fund is the Sewer System Reserve Fund.  These statements and 
schedules demonstrate compliance with the City’s adopted and final revised budget. 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements   
 
The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements provide information essential to a full understanding of the gov-
ernment-wide and fund financial statements.  The notes to the basic financial statements begin immediately following the 
basic financial statements.   
  

Page 48

3.



CITY OF HARRISBURG 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022 
Unaudited

- 4 -

Other Information 

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents as required supplementary 
information budgetary comparison statements for the General Fund, the Street Fund, the Debt Service Fund, and the Har-
risburg Redevelopment Agency Fund.  The required supplementary information immediately follows the notes to the fi-
nancial statements.  

Other supplementary data includes combining statements, individual fund statements and schedules, and other schedules. 
These statements and schedules immediately follow the required supplementary information in this report. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE 

Recall that the Statement of Net Position provides the perspective of the City as a whole. Net position may serve over 
time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position.  

The City’s net position at fiscal year-end is $18,070,133 this is an increase of $1,460,956 or 8.8%. 

A portion of the City's net position reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land and improvements, buildings and im-
provements, improvements other than buildings, vehicles, and machinery and equipment); less any related debt used to 
acquire those assets that are still outstanding.  The City uses these capital assets to provide services to its citizens; conse-
quently, these assets are not available for future spending.   

Although the City's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources 
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liqui-
date these liabilities. 

The City's financial position is the product of several financial transactions including the net results of activities, the ac-
quisition and payment of debt, the acquisition and disposal of capital assets, and the depreciation of capital assets. 
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The following table provides a summary of the City’s net position for the current and prior year.   
 

 
 
See the chart below to gain an understanding of the City’s actual financial position and how each component relates to the 
activities performed.  
 

 
 

Total

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

Assets
Current and Other Assets 7,491,975$      7,215,822$    6,767,935$    7,953,737$  14,259,910$   15,169,559$   

Capital Assets 9,336,152        7,927,093      9,925,588      9,114,625    19,261,740     17,041,718     

Total Assets 16,828,127      15,142,914    16,693,523    17,068,361  33,521,650     32,211,277     

Deferred Outflow of Resources 187,376           279,467        323,956        369,929       511,332         649,396         

Liabilities
Current Liabilities 793,479           498,260        115,665        278,452       909,144         776,712         

Long-Term Liabilities 11,683,277      12,298,146    2,476,294      3,039,152    14,159,571     15,337,298     

Total Liabilities 12,476,756      12,796,406    2,591,959      3,317,604    15,068,715     16,114,010     

Deferred Inflow of Resources 327,650           59,703          566,484        77,781         894,134         137,484         

Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 7,605,463        7,726,302      7,937,902      7,075,632    15,543,365     14,801,934     

Restricted 4,468,640        4,951,009      593,536        752,594       5,062,176      5,703,603      

Unrestricted (7,863,006)       (10,111,039)   5,327,598      6,214,679    (2,535,408)     (3,896,360)     

Total Net Position 4,211,097$      2,566,272$    13,859,036$  14,042,905$ 18,070,133$   16,609,179$   

Summary of Net Position

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
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Changes in net position - The City's total revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 were $4,679,312. The total 
cost of all programs and services was $3,218,356.  The following table shows a comparative analysis of government-wide 
revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. 
 

 
  

2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21

Revenues
Program Revenues

Charges for Services 177,651$     302,250$     1,454,061$ 1,355,914$ 1,631,712$ 1,658,164$ 

Operating Grants and Contributions 613,780       195,950       -                -                613,780      195,950      

Total Program Revenues 791,431       498,200       1,454,061   1,355,914   2,245,492   1,854,114   

General Revenues

    Local Sources

Property Taxes, Franchise Fees, &

   Public Service Taxes 2,330,056    2,411,802    -                -                2,330,056   2,411,802   

Interest & Investment Earnings 18,646         37,618         58,716       88,916       77,362       126,534      

Other Revenues 26,402         -                  -                -                26,402       -                

Total General Revenues 2,375,104    2,449,420    58,716       88,916       2,433,820   2,538,336   

Total Revenues 3,166,535    2,947,620    1,512,777   1,444,830   4,679,312   4,392,450   

Program Expenses
General Government 297,196       519,313       -                -                297,196      519,313      

Public Safety 287,712       258,291       -                -                287,712      258,291      

Public Works 398,146       392,316       -                -                398,146      392,316      

Culture and Recreation 83,781         179,772       -                -                83,781       179,772      

Urban Renewal Projects 4,941          110,257       -                -                4,941         110,257      

Interest and Fees on Long-Term Debt 447,534       383,045       67,836       -                515,370      383,045      

Utility Services
   Water Utilities -                 -                  794,468      258,377      794,468      258,377      

   Sewer Utilities -                 -                  836,742      605,299      836,742      605,299      

Total Program Expenses 1,519,310    1,842,993    1,699,046   863,676      3,218,356   2,706,669   

Transfers (2,400)         86,000         2,400         (86,000)      -                -                

Special Items -                 -                  -                -                -                -                

Change in Net Position 1,644,825$  1,190,627$  (183,869)$   495,154$    1,460,956$ 1,685,781$ 

Total

Summary of Changes in Net Position

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
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The Statement of Activities shows the cost of program services and the charges for services, grants, and contributions off-
setting those services.  The following table shows, for governmental activity, the total cost of the four major functional ac-
tivities of the City.  The table also shows each function’s net cost (total cost less charges for services generated by the ac-
tivities and intergovernmental aid provided for specific programs). The net cost shows the financial burden that was 
placed on the City’s taxpayers by each of these functions. 

This graph represents the cost of the City’s Program expenses by governmental activities. 

2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21

General Government (297,196)$     (519,313)$     218,089$     675,452$     

Public Safety (287,712)       (258,291)       (276,021)     (190,836)     

Public Works (398,146)       (392,316)       (258,081)     (204,512)     

Culture and Recreation (83,781)        (179,772)       (78,761)       (169,706)     

Urban Renewal Projects (4,941)          (110,257)       114,429       (33,521)       

Interest Expense (447,534)       (383,045)       (447,534)     (383,045)     

Total Program Expenses (1,519,310)$  (1,842,993)$   (727,879)$    (306,168)$    

Governmental Activities

 Net (Cost) Profit of Services  Total Cost of Services 
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The following chart analyzes the revenue between governmental activities and business-type activities from prior to cur-
rent year. 

2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21

Utility Services (1,631,210)$  (863,676)$     (177,149)$    492,238$     

Interest on Long-Term Debt (67,836)        - (67,836) - 

Total Program Expenses (1,699,046)$  (863,676)$     (244,985)$    492,238$     

 Net (Cost) Profit of Services  Total Cost of Services 

Business-Type Activities
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This graph represents the cost of the City’s Program expenses by business-type activities. 
 

 
 
 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS 
 
As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal require-
ments. The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on short-term inflows, outflows, and balanc-
es of spendable resources.  Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financing requirements. Unreserved fund 
balance may serve as a useful measure of the City’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 
 
Governmental Funds 
 
As the City completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $ $6,690,935, an increase of 
$142,941.  The fund balance constitutes restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned amounts.  Of the current fund bal-
ances, $304,847 is restricted for public works projects, $135,880 is restricted for debt service, $1,950,553 is restricted for 
capital projects, $2,077,360 is restricted for urban renewal projects, $1,022,400 is committed for various programs, and 
$1,199,895 is unassigned and available for spending at the City’s discretion.    
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Following is a comparison of current expenditures by program of the governmental funds. 
 

 
 
Proprietary Funds 
 
The City’s enterprise funds reported unrestricted net position of $5,320,815, a decrease of $892,252.  The enterprise funds 
also report $125,155 in restricted net position for debt service, $468,381 in restricted net position for public works pro-
jects and $7,937,902 in net position invested in capital assets, net of related debt. 
 
Following is a comparison of current expenses by program of the proprietary funds. 
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Budgetary Highlights  

General Fund resources were budgeted and anticipated to be available in the amount of $1,566,436 during the fiscal year. 
Actual resources of $1,693,351 were available, $126,915 more than budgeted.  General Fund expenditures budget was 
under-spent by $656,661.  The ending fund balance was greater than what was budgeted by $891,159 and more than the 
prior year by $235,097. 

The Water Fund balance decreased by $935,846 during the fiscal year and the Sewer Fund balance increased by $30,211. 
Both funds remained within their budgeted appropriations except for the Sewer Fund which overspent the Debt Service 
Principal appropriation by $45,000. The Water Fund’s actual resources were more than budgeted by $37,196. The Sewer 
Fund’s actual resources were more than budgeted by $59,921. 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION  

Capital Assets 

As of June 30, 2022, the City had invested, before net reduction for accumulated depreciation, $31,869,111 in capital as-
sets, including buildings, land, vehicles, water and sewer utility systems, construction in progress and other equipment. 
This amount represents an increase of $2,935,506 from the prior year primarily due to additions being higher than dele-
tions. In the governmental activities there were $1,440,883 of additions and $31,824 of deletions in the current year and in 
the enterprise funds there were $2,374,470 of additions and $154,448 of deletions.   

Total depreciation expense for the year was $715,484; of which $355,332 is associated with general government activi-
ties, $121,849 from water utilities, and $238,302 from sewer utilities. Additional information on the City’s capital assets 
can be found in the Capital Asset Note of the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements section of this report. 

Long-Term Debt 

At June 30, 2022 the City had total long-term debt outstanding of $12,250,000. Principal paid on existing debt was 
$245,791, and interest paid on the debt amounted to $503,476. Additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be 
found in the Long-Term Debt Note of the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.    
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET AND RATES    
 
A number of factors were considered by the City's officials during the process of developing the fiscal year 2022-23 
budget. The City’s budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023, is $16,628.539, representing an overall decrease of 
$1,957,902 when compared with the current fiscal year. There were no major or relevant change in the City's activities 
from Fiscal Year 2021-2022 to Fiscal Year 2022-2023. They do not have any major financing plans in the near future. 
 
Amounts available for appropriation in the General Fund, Street Fund, Sewer Fund, and Water fund will be $2,480,530, 
$1,166,539, $1,093,900, and $6,027,955. The total unappropriated and reserve amounts total in the amount of $1,297,375. 
 
The Harrisburg Redevelopment Agency budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023, is $2,415,155, representing an 
overall increase of $671,535 when compared with the current fiscal year. The HRA’s total appropriation amount for 2022-
23 will be $2,151,355. The total unappropriated and reserve amounts total in the amount of $263,800. 
 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the following property taxes are hereby imposed upon the assessed value of all taxa-
ble property within the district for tax year 2022-2023: 

1. At the rate of $3.1875 per $1000 of assessed value for permanent rate tax 
2. In the amount of $439,739 for debt service on general obligation bonds 

 
 
CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT   
 
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors, and creditors with a general overview of the 
City’s finances and to demonstrate the City’s accountability for the resources it receives.   
 
If you have any questions about this report or need additional information, contact the City of Harrisburg City Hall at 120 
Smith Street, Harrisburg, Oregon 97446. 
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Governmental 
Activities

Business-Type
  Activities Total

ASSETS:
Current Assets:

Cash and Investments 6,738,297$      6,469,108$      13,207,405$  
Receivables 471,408           106,361           577,769         
Inventory -                      60,528             60,528           
Deposits 141,906           -                      141,906         

Total Current Assets 7,351,611        6,635,997        13,987,608    

Restricted Assets:
Sinking Funds for Debt Service 135,880           125,155           261,035         
Net OPEB Asset (RHIA) 4,484               6,783               11,267           

Total Restricted Assets 140,364           131,938           272,302         

Capital Assets:
Land and Construction In Progress 2,251,127        4,402,334        6,653,461      
Depreciable Assets, Net of Depreciation 7,085,025        5,523,254        12,608,279    

Total Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation 9,336,152        9,925,588        19,261,740    

Total Assets 16,828,127      16,693,523      33,521,650    

DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES:
Pension Related Deferrals 185,231           320,250           505,481         
OPEB Related Deferrals - RHIA 1,119               1,932               3,051             
OPEB Related Deferrals - CIS 1,026               1,774               2,800             

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 187,376           323,956           511,332         

LIABILITIES: 
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable 437,635           24,785             462,420         
Payroll Payable 91,020             -                      91,020           
Accrued Compensated Absences 27,523             1,635               29,158           
Interest Payable 24,312             4,512               28,824           
Deposits 2,989               39,733             42,722           

Current Portion of Long-Term Liabilities:
Bonds Payable 210,000           45,000             255,000         

    Total Current Liabilities 793,479           115,665           909,144         

Long-Term Liabilities:
Noncurrent Portion of Long-Term Liabilities:

Bonds Payable (Net of unamortized premium) 11,365,787      1,942,686        13,308,473    
Net Pension Liability 299,783           518,302           818,085         
Net OPEB Obligation - CIS 17,707             15,306             33,013           

    Total Long-Term Liabilities 11,683,277      2,476,294        14,159,571    

Total Liabilities 12,476,756      2,591,959        15,068,715    

DEFERRED  INFLOW OF RESOURCES:
Pension Related Deferrals 325,413           562,614           888,027         
OPEB Related Deferrals - RHIA 2,237               3,870               6,107             

Total Deferred Inflow of Resources 327,650           566,484           894,134         

NET POSITION:
Net Investment in Capital Assets 7,605,463        7,937,902        15,543,365    
Restricted for:

Debt Service 135,880           125,155           261,035         
Public Works 304,847           468,381           773,228         
Capital Projects 1,950,553        -                      1,950,553      
Urban Renewal Projects 2,077,360        -                      2,077,360      

Unrestricted (7,863,006)      5,327,598        (2,535,408)     

Total Net Position 4,211,097$      13,859,036$    18,070,133$  

CITY OF HARRISBURG

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2022
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Net
(Expense)

Operating Capital Revenue
Charges Grants Grants and

for and and Change in
(Expenses) Services Contributions Contributions Net Position

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES:

General Government (297,196)$      -$                   515,285$           -$                     218,089$        

Public Safety (287,712)        -                    11,691               -                       (276,021)         

Public Works (398,146)        140,065          -                       -                       (258,081)         

Culture and Recreation (83,781)          -                    5,020                 -                       (78,761)          

Urban Renewal Projects (4,941)           37,586            81,784               -                       114,429          

Interest and Fees Expense (447,534)        -                    -                       -                       (447,534)         

Total Governmental Activities (1,519,310)$ 177,651$       613,780$         -$                     (727,879)$     

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES:

Water Utilities (794,468)$      649,150$         -$                     -$                     (145,318)$       

Sewer Utilities (836,742)        804,911          -                       -                       (31,831)          

Interest on Long-Term Debt (67,836)          -                    -                       -                       (67,836)          

Total Business-type Activities (1,699,046)$ 1,454,061$    -$                     -$                     (244,985)$     

Total Primary Government (3,218,356)$ 1,631,712$    613,780$         -$                     (972,864)$     

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total

CHANGES IN NET POSITION:

Net (expense) revenue (727,879)$          (244,985)$          (972,864)$       

General Revenues:

  Property Taxes, levied for general purposes 671,135             -                       671,135          

  Property Taxes, levied for debt service 421,230             -                       421,230          

  Property Taxes, levied for urban renewal programs 436,309             -                       436,309          

  Intergovernmental Tax Turnovers 418,329             -                       418,329          

  Franchise Taxes 325,615             -                       325,615          

  Other Taxes and Assessments 57,438               -                       57,438            

  Interest and Investment Earnings 18,646               58,716               77,362            
  Other Revenue 26,402               -                       26,402            

Subtotal - General Revenues 2,375,104           58,716               2,433,820       

Interfund Transfers (2,400)               2,400                 -                    

   Total general revenues, special items, and transfers 2,372,704           61,116               2,433,820       

Change in Net Position 1,644,825           (183,869)            1,460,956       

Net Position, July 1, 2021 2,566,272           14,042,905         16,609,177      

Net Position, June 30, 2022 4,211,097$      13,859,036$    18,070,133$ 

CITY OF HARRISBURG

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Program Revenues
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Component Unit
Harrisburg

Debt Redevelopment Other Total
General Street Service Agency Governmental Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS:

Cash and Investments 1,297,616$    618,715$   134,249$   1,918,848$     2,904,749$      6,874,177$              
Receivables:

Accounts, net 321              -               -               -                   5,754              6,075                      
Assessments -                  100,609     -               -                   86,036            186,645                   
Grants -                  -               -               -                   -                     -                             
Property Tax 26,919          -               14,674       15,961           -                     57,554                    
Franchise Taxes -                  -               -               -                   -                     -                             
Loans 27,523          -               -               193,611         -                     221,134                   

Deposits 2,989           -               -               -                   138,917           141,906                   

Total Assets 1,355,368$ 719,324$ 148,923$ 2,128,420$   3,135,456$    7,487,491$            

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES:
LIABILITIES:

Accounts Payable 47,300$        313,868$   -$             -$                  76,467$           437,635$                 
Interest Payable -                  -               -               3,953             -                     3,953                      
Payroll Payable 91,020          -               -               -                   -                     91,020                    
Deposits 2,989           -               -               -                   -                     2,989                      

Total Liabilities 141,309      313,868   -               3,953            76,467           535,597                 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deliquent Property Tax Revenue Not Available 14,164          -               13,043       8,388             -                     35,595                    
Unavailable Revenue from Loans -                  -               38,719           -                     38,719                    
Uncollected Assessments -                  100,609     -                   86,036            186,645                   

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 14,164        100,609   13,043     47,107          86,036           260,959                 

FUND BALANCES:
Restricted for:

Debt Service -                  -               135,880     -                   -                     135,880                   
Capital Projects -                  -               -               -                   1,950,553        1,950,553                
Urban Renewal Projects -                  -               -               2,077,360       -                     2,077,360                
Public Works -                  304,847     -               -                   -                     304,847                   

Committed for:
Parks and Recreation Programs -                  -               -               -                   43,647            43,647                    
Community Development Projects -                  -               -               -                   95,324            95,324                    
Public Works -                  -               -               -                   251,238           251,238                   
Equipment Acquisition -                  -               -               -                   632,191           632,191                   

Unassigned 1,199,895     -               -               -                   -                     1,199,895                

Total Fund Balances 1,199,895   304,847   135,880   2,077,360     2,972,953      6,690,935              

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows 
 of Resources & Fund Balances 1,355,368$ 719,324$ 148,923$ 2,128,420$   3,135,456$    7,487,491$            

CITY OF HARRISBURG

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022
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Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds  6,690,935$       

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources 

and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds. 

The cost of the assets is - 12,913,025$  

The accumulated depreciation is - (3,576,873)    

    Net Value of Assets 9,336,152        

Net OPEB and pension assets/liabilities reported in governmental activities are not

financial resources and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds. (313,006)          

Certain receivables that will not be available to pay for current-period

expenditures are deferred in the governmental funds:

Property Taxes 35,595         

Loan Revenue 38,719         

Assessments 186,645        

260,959           

Deferred inflows and outflows of pension contributions and earnings are 

not reported in the governmental funds

Net Pension and OPEB Related Deferrals (140,274)          

Interest Payable is not recorded in the governmental funds: (20,359)           

Accrued Compensated Absences are not recorded in the governmental funds: (27,523)           

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the  

current period and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds. (11,575,787)     

Net Position of Governmental Activities 4,211,097$       

CITY OF HARRISBURG

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET -- GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2022
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CITY OF HARRISBURG

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022
Component Unit

Harrisburg
Debt Redevelopment Other Total

General Street Service Agency Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

REVENUES:
Taxes and Assessments 701,102$      958$          421,230$   436,309$             67,737$           1,627,336$               
Intergovernmental 124,839        290,555      -               -                         2,935              418,329                   
Franchise Taxes 325,615        -                -               -                         -                     325,615                   
Licenses & Permits 26,402          -                -               -                         -                     26,402                     
Charges for Service -                  -                -               -                         140,065           140,065                   
Fines and Forfeitures 57,438          -                -               -                         -                     57,438                     
Investment Revenue 1,553           1,348         410           10,924                4,411              18,646                     
Grants 444,482        -                -               81,784                -                     526,266                   
Other Revenue 11,920          745            -               37,586                17,411            67,662                     

Total Revenues 1,693,351   293,606    421,640   566,603             232,559         3,207,759               

EXPENDITURES:
Current Operating:

General Government 666,624        -                -               -                         64,480            731,104                   
Public Safety 276,063        -                -               -                         -                     276,063                   
Public Works -                  116,803      -               -                         31,219            148,022                   
Culture and Recreation 20,000          -                -               -                         71,825            91,825                     
Urban Renewal Projects -                  -                -               15,960                -                     15,960                     

Debt Service:
Principal -                  -                80,000       120,791               -                     200,791                   
Interest and Fees -                  -                330,162     103,167               -                     433,329                   

Capital Outlay 4,817           978,001      -               183,023               219,832           1,385,673                 

Total Expenditures 967,504      1,094,804 410,162   422,941             387,356         3,282,767               

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures 725,847        (801,198)     11,478       143,662               (154,797)         (75,008)                    

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Interfund Transfers In 6,750           170,000      -               -                         351,400           528,150                   
Interfund Transfers (Out) (497,500)       (26,300)      -               -                         (6,750)             (530,550)                  

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (490,750)       143,700      -               -                         344,650           (2,400)                      

Net Change in Fund Balances 235,097      (657,498)   11,478     143,662             189,853         (77,408)                  

Fund Balances - July 1, 2021 964,798        962,345      124,402     1,790,757            2,783,100        6,625,402                 

Prior Period Adjustment -                  -                -               142,941               -                     142,941                   

Fund Balances - June 30, 2022 1,199,895$ 304,847$  135,880$ 2,077,360$        2,972,953$    6,690,935$             

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
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Net Changes in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds (77,408)$       

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures.  However, in the 
Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets are allocated over their 
estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.

Expenditures for capitalized assets 1,764,391$   
Less current year depreciation (355,332)$    

1,409,059     

Some revenues will not be collected for several months after the City's fiscal 
year end and are therefore not considered "available" revenues in the 
governmental funds, instead these funds are shown as deferred revenue.  
However, these funds are recorded as revenue in the Statement of Activities.

The changes in amounts deferred are as follows:
Property Taxes (16,963)        
Assessments (3,003)         
Uncollected Rents (21,258)        

(41,224)        

Expense accruals in the governmental funds do not include all accrued interest 
expense payable.  

The change in interest payable from the prior year 
to the current year is reconciled here.          (14,205)

Changes to vacation payable are reported as a change in expenses (1,006)          

Repayment of long-term debt principal amounts are expenditures in the 
governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term debt liabilities
in the Statement of Net Position.

Retirement of debt principal is as follows:
Notes Payable 120,791       
General Obligations Bonds 80,000         

200,791        

Prepaid expenses were originally reported in the governmental 

funds as an expenditure.  In the Statement of Activities the amount to be charged 

each year as an expense over the estimated expense incurred to pay the obligation 

 is amortized, rather than expensed at the time of the prepayment.

Amount of current year amortization - Bond Premium 53,265          

Adjustment for pension costs on accrued basis 115,553        

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities 1,644,825$ 

CITY OF HARRISBURG

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT
OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022
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Total
Water Sewer Enterprise
Utility Utility Funds

ASSETS:
Current Assets:

Cash and Investments 5,829,855$      639,253$      6,469,108$      
Receivables 40,962            65,399          106,361          
Inventory 55,472            5,056            60,528            

Total Current Assets 5,926,289        709,708        6,635,997        

Restricted Assets:
Sinking Funds for Debt Service -                    125,155        125,155          
Net OPEB Asset (RHIA) 3,876              2,907            6,783              

Total Restricted Assets 3,876              128,062        131,938          

Capital Assets:
Land and Construction In Progress 3,517,255        885,079        4,402,334        
Depreciable Assets, Net of Depreciation 1,913,480        3,609,774      5,523,254        

Total Capital Assets 5,430,735        4,494,853      9,925,588        

Total Assets 11,360,900    5,332,623   16,693,523    

DEFERRED  OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES:
Pension Related Deferrals 160,125          160,125        320,250          
OPEB Related Deferrals - RHIA 966                966              1,932              
OPEB Related Deferrals - CIS 887                887              1,774              

Total Deferred Outflow of Resources 161,978$       161,978$    323,956$       

LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable 14,649            10,136          24,785            
Accrued Compensated Absences -                    1,635            1,635              
Interest Payable -                    4,512            4,512              
Customer Deposits 20,194            19,539          39,733            
Current Portion of Long-Term Liabilities:

Bond Payable -                    45,000          45,000            

    Total Current Liabilities 34,843            80,822          115,665          

Long-Term Liabilities:
Noncurrent Portion of Long-Term Liabilities:

Bonds Payable (Net of unamortized premium) -                    1,942,686      1,942,686        
Net Pension Liability 259,151          259,151        518,302          
Net OPEB Obligation - CIS 15,306            -                  15,306            

    Total Long-Term Liabilities 274,457          2,201,837      2,476,294        

Total Liabilities 309,300         2,282,659   2,591,959      

DEFERRED  INFLOW OF RESOURCES:
Pension Related Deferrals 281,307          281,307        562,614          
OPEB Related Deferrals - RHIA 1,935              1,935            3,870              

Total Deferred Inflow of Resources 283,242$       283,242$    566,484$       

NET POSITION:
Net Investment in Capital Assets 5,430,735        2,507,167      7,937,902        
Restricted for Debt Service -                    125,155        125,155          
Restricted for Public Works 192,306          276,075        468,381          
Restricted for Net Pension Asset 3,876              2,907            6,783              
Unrestricted 5,303,419        17,396          5,320,815        

Total Net Position 10,930,336$  2,928,700$ 13,859,036$  

CITY OF HARRISBURG

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022
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Total
Water Sewer Enterprise
Utility Utility Funds

OPERATING REVENUES:

Charges for Services & Fees 625,230$        798,479$      1,423,709$      
Other Revenue 23,920            6,432           30,352            

Total Operating Revenues 649,150        804,911      1,454,061     

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Personnel Services 427,923          428,616        856,539          
Materials and Supplies 244,695          169,823        414,518          
Depreciation Expense 121,850          238,303        360,153          

Total Operating Expenses 794,468        836,742      1,631,210     

Operating Income (Loss) (145,318)         (31,831)        (177,149)         

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):

Investment Revenue 56,596            2,120           58,716            
Interest Expense -                    (67,836)        (67,836)          

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 56,596          (65,716)       (9,120)           

Income Before Other Revenues, Expenses, and Transfers (88,722)          (97,547)        (186,269)         

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANFERS:

Transfers to Other Funds (46,300)          (46,300)        (92,600)          
Transfers from Other Funds 42,000            53,000          95,000            

Total Capital Contributions and Transfers (4,300)           6,700          2,400            

Changes in Net Position (93,022)          (90,847)        (183,869)         

Net Position, July 1, 2021 11,023,358      3,019,547     14,042,905      

Net Position, June 30, 2022 10,930,336$ 2,928,700$ 13,859,036$ 

CITY OF HARRISBURG

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
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Total

Water Sewer Enterprise

Utility Utility Funds

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash Received from User Charges 658,683$      808,171$   1,470,114$    
Cash Payments for Employee Services (415,359)       (416,989)    (852,922)       
Cash Payments to Suppliers (380,892)       (198,611)    (579,503)       

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities (137,568)     192,571   55,003        

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Transfer to Other Funds (46,300)        (46,300)     (92,600)        
Transfer from Other Funds 42,000          53,000       95,000          

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non-capital 

Financing Activities (4,300)         6,700       2,400          

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition of Capital Assets (973,642)       (279,271)    (1,252,913)    
Principal Paid on Long Term Debt -                  (63,847)     (63,847)        
Interest and Fees Paid on Long Term Debt -                  (70,584)     (70,584)        

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and 

Related Financing Activities (973,642)     (413,702)  (1,387,344)  

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Investment Income 56,596          2,120        58,716          

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 56,596        2,120       58,716        

Cash and Cash Equivalents at July 1, 2021 6,888,769     976,719     7,865,488     

Cash and Cash Equivalents at June 30, 2022 5,829,855$ 764,408$ 6,594,263$ 

Reconciliation of income (loss) from operations

to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Income (loss) from operations (145,318)$     (31,831)$    (177,149)$     
Adjustments to reconcile income (loss) from operations to

net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation 121,850        238,303     360,153        
Change in assets and liabilities:

Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable 8,409           2,186        10,595          
Increase (decrease) in deposits 1,124           1,074        2,198           
Increase (decrease) in payables (136,197)       (28,788)     (164,985)       
Increase (decrease) in pension related accounts 12,564          11,627       24,191          

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (137,568)$     192,571$   55,003$        

CITY OF HARRISBURG

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: 
 
The City of Harrisburg, Oregon (City) is a municipal corporation incorporated under the laws of the State of Oregon.  
The City is governed by an elected Mayor and an elected council. Administration officials are appointed by the council 
and are responsible for the day-to-day operations of the City.  
 
The financial statements of the City have been prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 
(GAAP).  GAAP Statements include all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. 
 
The following is a summary of the more significant policies of the City: 
 
Reporting Entity 
 
In determining the financial reporting entity, the City of Harrisburg complies with Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board Statement 14 as amended, “The Financial Reporting Entity.” The criteria for including organizations as compo-
nent units within the City’s reporting entity, include whether 1) the organization is legally separate (can sue and be sued 
in their own name); 2) the City holds the corporate powers of the organization; 3) the City appoints a voting majority of 
the organization’s board; 4) the City is able to impose its will on the organization; 5) the organization has the potential to 
impose a financial benefit/burden on the City; and 6) there is fiscal dependency by the organization on the City.  Based 
on the aforementioned criteria, the City of Harrisburg has one component unit, the Urban Renewal Agency. 
 
Blended Component Unit.  The City has included the financial operations of its Redevelopment Agency as a blended 
component unit in the basic financial statements.  The Agency is a legally separate entity, which is governed by a board 
comprised of the members of the City Council as stipulated in the Agency’s bylaws.  The City Council has the ability to 
impose its will on the Agency as determined on the basis of budget adoption, taxing authority, and funding for the 
Agency.  The Agency is reported as a special revenue fund and a debt service fund.  Complete financial statements for 
the Agency can be obtained from the Finance Department of the City. 
 
Basis of Presentation 
 
Government-wide Statements:  The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information about 
the City as a whole.  These statements include the financial activities of the overall City.  Eliminations have been made 
to minimize the double counting of internal activities.  Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes 
and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent 
on fees and charges for support. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program of function 
and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function.  Program revenues include (a) fees and charges paid by 
the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting 
the operational or capital requirements of a particular program.  Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, 
including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.  The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identi-
fies the extent to which each governmental function is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the City. 
 
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given program are offset by pro-
gram revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific program.  Program revenues in-
clude 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges 
provided by a given program and 2) operating or capital grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the opera-
tional or capital requirements of a particular program. Taxes and other items not properly included among program rev-
enues are reported instead as general revenues. 
 
Net position is reported as restricted when constraints placed on net asset use are either externally restricted, imposed by 
creditors (such as through grantors, contributors or laws) or through constitutional provisions or enabling resolutions.  
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT): 
 
Basis of Presentation (Cont.) 
 
Fund Financial Statements:  The fund financial statements provide information about the city’s funds including those of 
a fiduciary nature, if applicable. Separate statements for each fund category – governmental and proprietary – are pre-
sented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental funds, each displayed in a separate column. 
All remaining governmental funds are aggregated and reported as other governmental funds.  
 
Governmental Funds are those funds through which most governmental functions typically are financed. The meas-
urement focus of governmental funds is on the sources, uses and balance of current financial resources. The City reports 
the following major governmental funds: 
 

General Fund - The General Fund is the main operating fund of the City.  All financial resources, except those 
required to be accounted for in another fund, are accounted for in the General Fund.  All general tax revenues 
and other receipts that are not restricted by law or contractual agreement to some other fund are accounted for in 
this fund.  General operating expenditures, fixed charges and capital improvement costs that are not paid 
through other funds are paid from the General Fund. 

 
Street Fund - This fund accounts for activities related to the construction and maintenance of City streets.  Rev-
enues for this fund come from state highway taxes and grants.   

 
Debt Service Fund - This fund is used to repay debts the City has collected, including principal, interest, and 
other costs.   

 
Harrisburg Redevelopment Agency Fund – This fund accounts for the General Fund revenues and expenditures 
of the Redevelopment Agency. 
 

Additionally, the City also reports non-major funds within the governmental fund type. 
 

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to 
expenditures for specified purposes.  Non-major special revenue funds include Community & Economic Devel-
opment Fund, Office Equipment Fund, Equipment Reserve Fund, Library Fund, Bike Path Reserve Fund, Storm 
Drain Reserve Fund, Transportation SDC Fund, Parks SDC Fund, Storm SDC Fund, Water SDC Fund, and 
Sewer SDC Fund. 
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.): 
 
Basis of Presentation (Cont.) 

 
Proprietary Funds are accounted for using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of ac-
counting. The accounting objectives are determinations of net income, financial position and cash flow. All assets and 
liabilities are included on the Statement of Net Position.  The City has presented the following major proprietary funds: 

 
Water Fund - The Water Fund is used to account for the provision of water services to the residents of the City. 
Activities of the fund include administration, operations and maintenance of the water system and billing and 
collection activities.   
Sewer Fund - The Sewer Fund is used to account for the provision of sewer services to the residents of the City. 
Activities of the fund include administration, operations and maintenance of the sewer system and billing and 
collection activities.   

 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and ex-
penses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary 
fund’s principal ongoing operations. Operating expenses for the proprietary funds include the cost of personal and con-
tractual services, supplies and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are 
reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 
 
Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting 
 
 
Government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual 
basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, 
regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Non-exchange transactions, in which the city receives value with-
out giving equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, entitlements and donations.  On the accrual basis of 
accounting revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenues from 
grants, entitlements, and donations are recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satis-
fied.  Under terms of grant agreements, the city funds certain programs by a combination of specific cost-reimbursement 
grants and general revenues. Thus, when program expenses are incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net 
position available to finance the program.  It is the city’s policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such 
programs and then general revenues.  
 
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the 
modified accrual basis of accounting.  Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when 
susceptible to accrual (when they are measurable and available). “Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can 
be determined and “available” means collected within the current period or expected to be collected soon enough there-
after to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. The city considers property taxes as available if they are collected 
within 60 days after year-end.  A one-year availability period is used for revenue recognition for all other governmental 
fund revenues. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for unmatured interest on 
general long-term debt, which is recognized when the obligations are expected to be liquidated with expendable availa-
ble financial resources. Property taxes, interest and special assessments are susceptible to accrual.  Other receipts and 
taxes become measurable and available when the cash is received by the government and are recognized as revenue at 
that time.  Entitlements and shared revenues are recorded at the time of receipt or earlier if the “susceptible to accrual” 
criteria are met.  Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been in-
curred and all other grant requirements have been met.  Capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in the 
governmental funds and proceeds from general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other 
financing sources.  
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.): 
 
Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting (Cont.) 
 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and ex-
penses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary 
fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the city’s Sewer and Water Funds are charges 
to customers for sales and services. These funds also recognize fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new cus-
tomers to the city’s utility systems as operating revenue. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of 
sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting 
this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.  
 
 
Budgeting 
 
A budget is prepared for each city fund in accordance with the modified accrual basis of accounting and legal require-
ments set forth in the Oregon local budget law. The resolution authorizing appropriations for each fund sets the level by 
which expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations. Total personnel services, materials and services, capital out-
lay, contingencies, and debt service by fund are the levels of control. The detail budget document, however, is required 
to contain more specific, detailed information for the above-mentioned expenditure categories.  Appropriations lapse at 
June 30. Unexpected additional resources may be added to the budget by a supplemental budget and appropriations reso-
lution. A supplemental budget may require hearings before the public, publications in newspapers, and approval by the 
city council.  Original and supplemental budgets may be modified by using appropriations transfers between the levels 
of control.  Such transfers require approval by the city council. The city does not utilize encumbrance accounting for 
budgeted funds.  
 
 
Cash and Investments 
 
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, checking, savings and 
money market accounts and any short-term, highly liquid investments with initial maturity dates of three months or less. 
 
The City has adopted an investment policy requiring compliance with Oregon statutes, which authorizes the City to in-
vest in obligations of the United States, the agencies and instrumentalities of the United States and the State of Oregon, 
and numerous other investment instruments. 
 
The City’s investments may consist of time certificates of deposit, banker’s acceptances, commercial paper, U.S. Gov-
ernment Agency securities, and the State of Oregon Treasurer’s Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP).  The City’s 
investments are reported at fair value at year-end.  Changes in the fair value of investments are recorded as investment 
earnings.  The LGIP is stated at cost, which approximates fair value.  Fair value of the LGIP is the same as the City’s 
value in the pool shares.  
 
The Oregon State Treasury administers the LGIP.  It is an open-ended, non-load diversified portfolio offered to any 
agency, political subdivision or public corporation of the State that by law is made the custodian of, or has control of, 
any fund.  The LGIP is included in the Oregon Short Term Fund (OSTF) which was established by the State Treasurer.   
 
In seeking to best serve local governments of Oregon, the Oregon legislature established the Oregon Short-Term Fund 
Board.  The purpose of the Board is to advise the Oregon State Treasury in the management and investment options of 
the LGIP. 
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.): 
 
Accumulated Compensated Absences 
 
Accumulated vested vacation and compensatory pay is accrued as it is earned.  For governmental funds, compensation 
not expected to be liquidated with the current resources are reported as liabilities in the government-wide statements and 
represent a reconciling item between the fund level and government-wide presentations.  In business-type funds both the 
current and long-term liabilities are recorded. Sick pay, which does not vest, is recognized in applicable funds when 
leave is taken. 
 
Receivables  
 
Amounts due from individuals and organizations are recorded as receivables at year-end. These amounts include charges 
for services rendered, or for goods and material provided by the City. All receivables are expected to be collected. Ac-
cordingly, receivables are reported at the gross amount without an allowance for uncollectible accounts.  
 
Receivables are also recognized for property taxes and intergovernmental grants. Property taxes receivable consist of 
uncollected taxes levied and payable at the end of the fiscal year.  All taxes are considered collectible. Consequently no 
allowance for uncollectible taxes has been established. In the governmental fund financial statements, property taxes not 
collected within sixty days of the end of the fiscal year are reported as a deferred inflow or resources.  
 
 
Deferred Inflows/Outflows of Resources: 
 
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of 
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net po-
sition that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) 
until then. Currently, the City has two items that qualifies for reporting in this category, deferred pension contributions 
and OPEB related deferrals. 
 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows 
of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net 
position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that 
time. The City has two items that qualifies for reporting in this category, deferred earnings on pension assets and OPEB 
related deferrals.  
 
In the governmental funds balance sheet, a different category of deferred inflow of resources, delinquent property tax 
revenue not available, is reported. Property taxes levied and considered receivable at the end of the fiscal year, but not 
collected within sixty days of the end of the fiscal year are reported in this category. These amounts are recognized as an 
inflow of resources (revenue) in the period that the amounts become available. 
 
 
Inventory 
 
Inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market value, using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. The costs of 
governmental fund-type inventories are recorded as expenditures when purchased. The costs of proprietary fund type in-
ventories are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased. 
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.): 
 
Restricted Assets and Liabilities 
 
Certain resources are set aside and restricted for future bond payments and the related liability; these resources are seg-
regated in the statement of net position and are classified as restricted assets on the Statement of Net Position because 
their use is limited. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the City had sinking funds for debt service of $273,302 in 
restricted assets. 
 
 
Long-Term Debt 
 
All bonds and capital leases to be paid from governmental and business-type resources are reported as liabilities in the 
government-wide financial statements.  Amounts of the long-term debt due within the following fiscal year are included 
in the current liabilities section of the Statement of Net Position. 
 
Long-term debt for governmental funds is not reported as a liability in the fund financial statements. The debt proceeds 
are reported as other financing sources and payment of principal and interest reported as expenditures. The accounting 
for proprietary funds is the same in the fund financial statements as it is in the government-wide statements. 
 
 
Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets, which include property, plant, and equipment, are reported in the applicable governmental or business-
type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements and in the fund financial statements for proprietary 
funds.  Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost, or estimated cost when original cost is not available.  
Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date received.  Maintenance and repairs of 
capital assets that do not significantly extend the useful life of an asset are not capitalized, but rather are charged to ex-
penditures in the funds.  
 
Assets capitalized have an original cost of $5,000 or more and over one year of useful life.  Depreciation has been calcu-
lated on each class of depreciable property using the straight-line method. 
 
The estimated useful lives are as follows: 
 Buildings and Improvements 10-50 years 
 Machinery and Equipment 3-20 years 
 Vehicles 5-10 years 
 Water and Sewer Systems 20-50 years 
 Infrastructure 25-35 years 
 
 
Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and lia-
bilities as well as disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.): 
 
Equity Classifications: 
 
Government-wide Statements and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements 
Equity is classified as net position, which represents the difference between assets and liabilities, and deferred accounts. 
Net position is displayed in three components: 
 

a. Net investment in capital assets - Consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets, net of accu-
mulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other 
borrowing that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. 

b. Restricted net position - Consists of net position with constraints placed on the use either by (1) external 
groups such as creditors, grantor, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (2) law 
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

c. Unrestricted net position - All other net position that do not meet the definition of “restricted” or “invested 
in capital assets, net of related debt.”  

 
The City’s policy is to first apply restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted 
and unrestricted net position is available. 
  
Governmental Fund Financial Statements 
 
The governmental fund financial statements present fund balances based on classifications that comprise a hierarchy that 
is based primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which 
amounts in the respective governmental funds can be spent. The classifications used in the governmental fund financial 
statements are as follows: 
 

 Nonspendable: This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent either because it is not in spendable 
form or because of legal or contractual constraints. The City did not have any nonspendable resources as of June 
30, 2022. 
 
 Restricted: This classification includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes which 
are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or im-
posed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.  The City has restricted funds for public 
works projects, capital projects and debt service. 
 
 Committed: This classification includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purpose that 
are internally imposed by the government through resolution of the highest level of decision-making authority, 
the City Council, and does not lapse at year-end.  The City has committed resources as of June 30, 2022. 
 
 Assigned: This classification includes fund balance amounts that are intended to be used for specific purpos-
es that are neither restricted nor committed. This intent can be expressed by the City Council or through the City 
Council delegating this responsibility to selected staff members or through the budgetary process. This classifi-
cation also includes the remaining positive fund balance for all governmental funds except for the General Fund.  

 
 Unassigned: This classification includes positive fund balance within the General Fund which has not been 
classified within the above-mentioned categories, and negative fund balances of other governmental funds. 
 

The City’s policy is to use restricted fund balances first, followed by committed resources, and then assigned resources, 
as appropriate opportunities arise, but reserves the right to selectively spend unassigned resources first to defer the use of 
the constrained fund balances. 
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.): 
 
Property Taxes 
 
The assessment date for the tax year is July 1.  Personal and real property taxes are a lien on July 1. Total personal prop-
erty tax becomes due and is delinquent when any installment is not paid by its due date. Real property tax is due and 
payable on November 15.  However, a taxpayer may pay real property taxes in three equal installments, due the 15th day 
of November, February, and May.  Real property taxes become delinquent if not paid by May 15.   
 
Inter-Fund Transactions 
 
Quasi-external transactions are accounted for as revenues or expenditures.  Transactions that constitute reimbursements 
to a fund for expenditures initially made from it that are properly applicable to another fund, are recorded as expendi-
tures in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures in the fund that is reimbursed.  All other inter-fund 
transactions, except quasi-external transactions and reimbursements, are reported as transfers in the fund financial state-
ments. Nonrecurring or non-routine permanent transfers of equity are reported as residual equity transfers.  All other in-
ter-fund transfers are reported as operating transfers.  For the purposes of the Statement of Activities, all interfund trans-
fers between individual governmental funds have been eliminated. 
 
Pensions 
 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources re-
lated to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Oregon Public Employees 
Retirement Fund (OPERF) and the Oregon Public Service Retirement Plan (OPSRP) and additions to/deductions from 
OPERF’s and OPSRP’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by PERS. 
For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable 
in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 
 
CASH AND INVESTMENTS: 
 
For discussion of deposit and investment policies and other related information, see Cash and Investments note under the 
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.  
 
The City follows the practice of aggregating the cash assets of various funds to maximize cash management efficiency 
and returns. Various restrictions on deposits and investments are imposed by state statutes.  These restrictions are sum-
marized at Cash and Investments note under the Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.  
 
Investments, including amounts held in pool cash and investments are stated at fair value.  In accordance with Govern-
mental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain In-
vestments and for External Investment Pools, investments with a remaining maturity of more than one year at the time of 
purchase are stated at fair value.  Fair value is determined at the quoted market prices, if available; otherwise, the fair 
value is estimated based on the amount at which the investment could be exchanged in a current transaction between 
willing parties, other than a forced liquidation sale.  Investments in the State of Oregon Local Government Investment 
Pool (LGIP) are stated at fair value. 
 
Deposits - All cash is deposited in compliance with Oregon statutes. The insurance and collateral requirements for de-
posits are established by banking regulations and Oregon law. FDIC insurance of $250,000 applies to the deposits in 
each depository. ORS 295 governs the collateralization of Oregon public funds and provides the statutory requirements 
for the Oregon Public Funds Collateralization Program (PFCP).  Where balances continually exceed $250,000, ORS 295 
requires the depositor to verify that deposit accounts are only maintained at financial institutions on the list of qualified 
depositories found on the state treasurer’s website.  
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CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Cont.): 
 
Custodial Credit Risk for Deposits - Custodial credit risk for deposits exists when, in the event of a depository failure, 
the City's deposits may not be returned to it.  The City does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. 

 
As of June 30, 2022, the reported amount of the City’s deposits was $437,798 and the bank balance was $441,347.  Of 
the bank balance, the entire amount was insured by the FDIC or covered by the collateral held in a multiple financial in-
stitutions collateral pool administered by the Oregon State Treasurer. 
 
Investments - Oregon statutes authorize the City to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. agencies, bank-
er’s acceptances, repurchase agreements, commercial paper rated A-1 by Standard & Poor’s Corporation or P-1 by 
Moody’s Commercial Paper Record, and the Local Governmental Investment Pool. The City has no credit risk policy or 
investment policy that would further limit its investment choices. 
 

Credit Risk - Credit risk exists when there is a possibility the issuer or other counterparty to an investment may be 
unable to fulfill its obligations.  As of June 30, 2022, the City’s investment in the Oregon State Treasurer’s Local 
Government Investment Pool (LGIP) was unrated. 

 
At June 30, 2022, the City's investments in financial institutions are as follows:  
 

 
 
Investments in the LGIP and federal agency notes do not require disclosure credit rating quality. 
 

Concentration of Credit Risk - An increased risk of loss occurs as more investments are acquired from one issuer. 
This results in a concentration of credit risk.  The City places no limit on the amount that may be invested in any 
one issuer. More than 5 percent of the City's investments are in the Oregon State Treasurer's Local Government In-
vestment Pool (LGIP). This investment is 100% of the City's total investments. 

 
RECEIVABLES: 
 
The following is a summary of receivable balances reported on the statement of net position at June 30, 2022: 
 

 
  

Fair Value Credit Rating

Oregon State Treasurer's Local Government

Investment Pool (LGIP) 13,172,548$  N/A

Total Investments 13,172,548$  

Type of Investment

Governmental 
Activities

Business-Type
  Activities

Accounts, net 6,075$            106,361$        

Assessments 186,645          -                    

Property Tax 57,554            -                    

Loans 221,134          -                    

Total 471,408$        106,361$        
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CAPITAL ASSETS: 
 
The following is a summary of capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022: 
 

 
  

Governmental Activities
Beginning 
Balances Additions Deletions Ending Balances

Assets not being depreciated:
Land 520,438$        -$            -$                520,438$             
Construction in Progress 31,824            1,730,689   31,824        1,730,689            

Total 552,262          1,730,689   31,824        2,251,127            

Assets being depreciated:
Land Improvement 651,697          -              -                  651,697               
Building and Building Improvement 1,163,347       15,101        -                  1,178,448            
Machinery and Equipment 652,069          33,702        -                  685,771               
Infrastructure 8,129,258       16,723        -                  8,145,981            

Total Depreciable Assets 10,596,372     65,526        -                  10,661,898          

Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Land Improvement 353,440          24,820        -                  378,260               
Building and Building Improvement 406,262          26,403        -                  432,665               
Machinery and Equipment 403,856          41,875        -                  445,731               
Infrastructure 2,057,983       262,235      -                  2,320,217            

Total Accumulated Depreciation 3,221,541       355,332      -                  3,576,873            

Net Value of Capital Assets Being Depreciated 7,374,831       (289,806)     -                  7,085,025            

Total Governmental Activities -- Net Value of 
Capital Assets 7,927,093$     1,440,883$ 31,824$      9,336,152$          

Depreciation expense was charged to the functions of governmental activities as follows: 
General Government 21,538$      
Public Safety 11,649        
Public Works 292,995      
Culture and Recreation 29,150        

Total Depreciation Expense 355,332$    

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022
Depreciable Assets Schedule
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CAPITAL ASSETS (Cont.): 
 

 
 
LONG-TERM DEBT: 
 
In the following paragraphs, long-term debt information is presented separately with respect to governmental and busi-
ness-type activities. The table below presents current year changes in those obligations and the current portions due for 
each issue.  
  
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES: 
 
On August 24, 2017, the City issued $930,000 in General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2017 held by US Bank 
with an interest rate of 3.00 to 4.00% annually and maturity in fiscal year 2039 to refinance the November 1, 2000 Gen-
eral Obligation Bonds held by USDA Rural Development for Water System Improvements that had an original balance 
of $1,174,000 and an interest rate of 4.75. 
 
On August 24, 2017, the City issued $2,405,000 in Full Faith and Credit Obligations, Series 2017, entered with US Bank 
for HRA development projects with an interest rate between 2% and 4%. 
 
  

Business-Type Activities
Beginning 
Balances Additions Deletions Ending Balances

Assets not being depreciated:
Land 533,872$        -$                -$                533,872$             
Construction in Progress 3,017,444       973,641      122,624      3,868,461            

Total 3,551,316       973,641      122,624      4,402,333            

Assets being depreciated:
Utility Systems 13,570,717     320,098      -                  13,890,815          
Machinery and Equipment 662,938          -              -                  662,938               

Total Depreciable Assets 14,233,655     320,098      -                  14,553,753          

Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Utility Systems 8,200,702       319,630      -                  8,520,332            
Machinery and Equipment 469,644          40,522        -                  510,166               

Total Accumulated Depreciation 8,670,346       360,151      -                  9,030,497            

Net Value of Capital Assets Being Depreciated 5,563,309       (40,053)       -                  5,523,255            

Total Business-Type Activities -- Net Value of 
Capital Assets 9,114,625$     933,588$    122,624$    9,925,588$          

Total Net Value of Captial Assets of Primary 
Government 17,041,718$   2,374,470$ 154,448$    19,261,741$        

Depreciation expense was charged to the functions of business-type activities as follows: 
Water 121,849$    

Sewer 238,302      

Total Depreciation Expense 360,151$    

Page 81

3.



CITY OF HARRISBURG 
 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

June 30, 2022 

- 37 - 

 
LONG-TERM DEBT (Cont.): 
 
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES (Cont.): 
 
On September 29, 2017, the Harrisburg Redevelopment Agency issued a note with KS State Bank Government Finance 
Department in the amount of $531,000 with an interest rate of 4.55%. Proceeds of the note are for private loans/grants 
for redevelopment projects on private property. This loan has been paid off and has no outstanding balance. 
 
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES: 
 
On August 21, 2019, the City issued General Obligation Bonds, Series 2019 to finance capital costs related to the City's 
water system in the amount of $7,420,000. The Bonds are held by US Bank and carry an interest rate between 3.0 and 
4.25%. Interest payments are due June 1 and December 1 with a principal payment due June 1 of each year, with the 
first interest payment due December 1, 2019.       
         
On August 24, 2017, the City issued $2,405,000 in Full Faith and Credit Refunding Obligations, Series 2017, entered 
with US Bank for the refinancing of USDA Revenue Bonds for Sewer Projects with an interest rate between 2% and 
4%. 

 

Outstanding Outstanding Due
Balance Reductions/ Interest Balance Within

Governmental Long-Term Debt July 1, 2021 New Issues Adjustments Paid June 30, 2022 One Year

Bonds Payable:

General Obligation Refunding Bond, Series 2017 795,000.00$     -$            35,000.00$    29,600.00$   760,000.00$     35,000.00$   
Full Faith and Credit Project Bond, Series 2017 - 
HRA Development Projects 2,405,000.00$   -$            -$             93,800.00$   2,405,000.00$   120,000.00$ 
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2019 7,300,000.00$   -$            45,000.00$    300,562.00$ 7,255,000.00$   55,000.00$   

Total Bonds Payable 10,500,000.00$ -$            80,000.00$    423,962.00$ 10,420,000.00$ 210,000.00$ 

Notes from Direct Borrowings:
KS State Bank Government Finance Dept. - HRA 
Development Loan 120,791.00$     -$            120,791.00$  5,414.00$     -$                -$            

Total Notes from Direct Borrowings 120,791$          -$                120,791$      5,414$         -$                    -$                

Total Governmental Long-Term Debt 10,620,791.00$ -$            200,791.00$  429,376.00$ 10,420,000.00$ 210,000.00$ 

Bond Issuance Premiums 1,209,052.00$   -$            53,265.00$    -$            1,155,787.00$   -$            

 Governmental Long-Term Debt
   net of Unamortized Premiums 11,829,843.00$ -$            254,056.00$  429,376.00$ 11,575,787.00$ 210,000.00$ 

Outstanding Outstanding Due

Balance Reductions/ Interest Balance Within
Business-Type Long-Term Debt July 1, 2021 New Issues Adjustments Paid June 30, 2022 One Year

Bonds Payable:

Full Faith and Credit Refunding Bond, Series 2017
1,875,000.00$   -$            45,000.00$    74,100.00$   1,830,000.00$   45,000.00$   

Total Bonds Payable 1,875,000.00$   -$            45,000.00$    74,100.00$   1,830,000.00$   45,000.00$   
Total Business-Type Long-Term Debt 1,875,000.00$   -$            45,000.00$    74,100.00$   1,830,000.00$   45,000.00$   
Bond Issuance Premiums 163,993.00$     -$            6,307.00$     -$            157,686.00$     -$            

 Business-Type Long-Term Debt
   net of Unamortized Premiums 2,038,993.00$   -$            51,307.00$    74,100.00$   1,987,686.00$   45,000.00$   

CITY OF HARRISBURG

SCHEDULE OF LONG-TERM DEBT TRANSACTIONS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022
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LONG-TERM DEBT (Cont.): 
 
The debt service requirements on the above debt is as follows: 
 

 
 

 
The City has no unused lines of credit. 
 

The City has no assets that are specifically pledged as collateral for any of the debt. 
 
For further detail on debt service, see the ‘Schedule of Long-Term Debt Transactions’ in the Other Supplementary  
Data section of this report. 
  

General Obligation and Full Faith and Credit Bonds:
Due Fiscal Year

Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2023 255,000$        493,863$        748,863$            

2024 280,000          487,863         767,863             

2025 300,000          477,013         777,013             

2026 330,000          465,363         795,363             

2027 350,000          452,563         802,563             

2028 - 2032 2,150,000       2,034,813       4,184,813           

2033 - 2037 3,015,000       1,539,213       4,554,213           

2038 - 2042 2,705,000       951,100         3,656,100           

2043 - 2047 2,865,000       311,950         3,176,950           
Total 12,250,000$    7,213,738$     19,463,738$       
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PENSION PLAN: 
 
The City of Harrisburg offers various retirement plans to qualified employees as described below. 
 

Name of Pension Plan 
  
The City of Harrisburg participates with other state agencies in the Oregon Public Employees Retirement System 
(OPERS) which is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan.   
 
Description of Benefit Terms  
 
Plan Benefits 

 

OPERS is administered in accordance with Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) Chapter 238, Chapter 238A, and Internal 
Revenue Code Section 401(a).  The Oregon Legislature has delegated authority to the Public Employees Retirement 
Board (PERS Board) to administer and manage the System.  
 

1. Tier One/Tier Two Retirement Benefit (Chapter 238). OPERS is a defined benefit pension plan that provides re-
tirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to members and their beneficiaries. 
Benefits are established by state statute. This defined benefit pension plan portion of OPERS is closed to new members 
hired on or after August 29, 2003. 
 
Pension Benefits  

The OPERS retirement allowance is payable monthly for life. It may be selected from 13 retirement benefit options. 
These options include survivorship benefits and lump-sum refunds. The basic benefit is based on years of service and fi-
nal average salary. A percentage (2.0 percent for police and fire employees, 1.67 percent for general service employees) 
is multiplied by the number of years of service and the final average salary. Benefits may also be calculated under either 
a formula plus annuity (for members who were contributing before August 21, 1981) or a money match computation if a 
greater benefit results.  
 
A member is considered vested and will be eligible at minimum retirement age for a service retirement allowance if he 
or she has had a contribution in each of five calendar years, or has reached at least 50 years of age before ceasing em-
ployment with a participating employer (age 45 for police and fire members). General service employees may retire after 
reaching age 55. Police and fire members are eligible after reaching age 50. Tier One general service employee benefits 
are reduced if retirement occurs prior to age 58 with fewer than 30 years of service. Police and fire member benefits are 
reduced if retirement occurs prior to age 55 with fewer than 25 years of service. Tier Two members are eligible for full 
benefits at age 60. The ORS Chapter 238 Defined Benefit Pension Plan is closed to new members hired on or after Au-
gust 29, 2003. 

During the 2019 Legislative session, Senate Bill 1049 was approved and signed into law by the governor. Under Senate 
Bill 1049, several components of the bill have significantly impacted the System, and the bill continues to be imple-
mented.   
 

1. Employer Programs Project (effective July 1, 2019): established the Employer Incentive Fund (EIF) Program, 
which allows eligible employers to receive matching funds if they apply and make a qualifying deposit into a side 
account. 

 
2. Salary Limit Project (effective January 1, 2020): A new $195,000 limitation on subject salary used for PERS 

benefit calculations and contributions is used to determine member IAP contributions, employer contributions to 
fund the pension program, and the Final Average Salary (FAS) used in calculating retirement benefits under for-
mula methods. This amount will be indexed annually to the Consumer Price Index (CPI).  
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PENSION PLAN (Cont.): 
 
3. Work After Retirement Project (effective January 1, 2020): The 1,039-hour Work After Retirement limit for all 

PERS retirees is removed for calendar years 2020 through 2024. If a member retires on or after normal retirement 
age, starting in 2020, they can work for a PERS-covered employer and continue receiving their pension benefit 
(without accruing any new benefits) with no hour limitations. If a member retires earlier than normal retirement 
age, starting in 2020, they can work for a PERS-covered employer and continue receiving their pension benefit 
(without accruing any new benefits) with no hour limitations if the date of their employment is more than six 
months after their retirement date.  

 
4. Member Redirect Project (effective July 1, 2020): For all currently employed Tier One/Tier Two and OPSRP 

members earning $2,500/month or more, (adjusted to $3,333/month in House Bill 2906 effective June 2021), a 
portion of their 6 percent monthly IAP contributions will be redirected to an “Employee Pension Stability Ac-
count.” The Employee Pension Stability Account will be used to pay for part of the member’s future pension 
benefit.  

 Tier One/Tier Two members: 2.5 percent of each member’s salary, currently contributed to the IAP, 
(whether paid by the member or employer) will start going into an Employee Pension Stability Account 
(EPSA). The remaining 3.5 percent of salary will continue to go to the member’s existing IAP account.  

 Members may voluntarily choose to make additional after-tax contributions into their IAP account to 
make a full, 6 percent contribution to the IAP.  

 
1. Member Choice Project (effective January 1, 2021): IAP accounts are currently invested in Target-Date Funds 

based on a member’s birth year. Beginning in 2021, members may choose to invest their IAP balance in a fund 
that is more reflective of their risk tolerance than the default based on their age.  

 
2. Additionally, the Legislature directed the PERS Board to enact a one-time re-amortization of Tier 1/Tier 2 UAL 

over 22 years. This means that, effective with the December 31, 2019 rate-setting valuation, the entire unamor-
tized Tier 1/Tier 2 UAL for each rate pool and independent employer will be re-amortized over a 22 year period 
as a level percentage of projected future payroll. 

Death Benefits  

Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives a lump-sum refund of the member’s account balance 
(accumulated contributions and interest). In addition, the beneficiary will receive a lump-sum payment from employer 
funds equal to the account balance, provided one or more of the following conditions are met:   

• the member was employed by an OPERS employer at the time of death,   
• the member died within 120 days after termination of OPERS-covered employment,   
• the member died as a result of injury sustained while employed in an OPERS-covered job, or  
• the member was on an official leave of absence from an OPERS-covered job at the time of death. 

Disability Benefits  

A member with 10 or more years of creditable service who becomes disabled from other than duty-connected causes 
may receive a non-duty disability benefit. A disability resulting from a job-incurred injury or illness qualifies a member 
(including OPERS judge members) for disability benefits regardless of the length of OPERS-covered service. Upon 
qualifying for either a non-duty or duty disability, service time is computed to age 58 (55 for police and fire members) 
when determining the monthly benefit. 

Benefit Changes After Retirement  

Members may choose to continue participation in a variable equities investment account after retiring and may experi-
ence annual benefit fluctuations due to changes in the market value of equity investments.  

Under ORS 238.360, monthly benefits are adjusted annually through cost-of-living changes (COLA).   The COLA is 
capped at 2.0 percent. 
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PENSION PLAN (Cont.): 
 
2. OPSRP Defined Benefit Pension Program (OPSRP DB).  The Pension Program (ORS Chapter 238A) provides 
benefits to members hired on or after August 29, 2003. 

Pension Benefits  

This portion of OPSRP provides a life pension funded by employer contributions. Benefits are calculated with the fol-
lowing formula for members who attain normal retirement age:   

Police and fire: 1.8 percent is multiplied by the number of years of service and the final average salary. Normal retire-
ment age for police and fire members is age 60 or age 53 with 25 years of retirement credit. To be classified as a police 
and fire member, the individual must have been employed continuously as a police and fire member for at least five 
years immediately preceding retirement.   

General service: 1.5 percent is multiplied by the number of years of service and the final average salary. Normal retire-
ment age for general service members is age 65, or age 58 with 30 years of retirement credit.   

A member of the OPSRP Pension Program becomes vested on the earliest of the following dates: the date the member 
completes 600 hours of service in each of five calendar years, the date the member reaches normal retirement age, and, 
if the pension program is terminated, the date on which termination becomes effective.   
 
During the 2019 Legislative session, Senate Bill 1049 was approved and signed into law by the governor. Under Senate 
Bill 1049, several components of the bill have significantly impacted the System, and the bill continues to be imple-
mented.   

1. Employer Programs Project (effective July 1, 2019): established the Employer Incentive Fund (EIF) Program, 
which allows eligible employers to receive matching funds if they apply and make a qualifying deposit into a side 
account. 

 
2. Salary Limit Project (effective January 1, 2020): A new $195,000 limitation on subject salary used for PERS 

benefit calculations and contributions is used to determine member IAP contributions, employer contributions to 
fund the pension program, and the Final Average Salary (FAS) used in calculating retirement benefits under for-
mula methods. This amount will be indexed annually to the Consumer Price Index (CPI).  
 

3. Work After Retirement Project (effective January 1, 2020): The 1,039-hour Work After Retirement limit for all 
PERS retirees is removed for calendar years 2020 through 2024. If a member retires on or after normal retirement 
age, starting in 2020, they can work for a PERS-covered employer and continue receiving their pension benefit 
(without accruing any new benefits) with no hour limitations. If a member retires earlier than normal retirement 
age, starting in 2020, they can work for a PERS-covered employer and continue receiving their pension benefit 
(without accruing any new benefits) with no hour limitations if the date of their employment is more than six 
months after their retirement date.  
 

4. Member Redirect Project (effective July 1, 2020): For all currently employed Tier One/Tier Two and OPSRP 
members earning $2,500/month or more, (adjusted to $3,333/month in House Bill 2906 effective June 2021), a 
portion of their 6 percent monthly IAP contributions will be redirected to an “Employee Pension Stability Ac-
count.” The Employee Pension Stability Account will be used to pay for part of the member’s future pension 
benefit.  

 OPSRP members: 0.75 percent of each member’s salary, currently contributed to the IAP, (whether paid 
by the member or employer) will start going into their EPSA. The remaining 5.25 percent of salary will 
continue to go to the member’s existing IAP account.  

 Members may voluntarily choose to make additional after-tax contributions into their IAP account to 
make a full, 6 percent contribution to the IAP.  
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PENSION PLAN (Cont.): 
 

5. Member Choice Project (effective January 1, 2021): IAP accounts are currently invested in Target-Date Funds 
based on a member’s birth year. Beginning in 2021, members may choose to invest their IAP balance in a fund 
that is more reflective of their risk tolerance than the default based on their age.  

Death Benefits  

Upon the death of a non-retired member, the spouse or other person who is constitutionally required to be treated in the 
same manner as the spouse, receives for life 50 percent of the pension that would otherwise have been paid to the de-
ceased member.   

Disability Benefits  

A member who has accrued 10 or more years of retirement credits before the member becomes disabled or a member 
who becomes disabled due to job-related injury shall receive a disability benefit of 45 percent of the member’s salary 
determined as of the last full month of employment before the disability occurred.   
 
3. Individual Account Program (IAP).  

Benefit Terms 

The IAP is an individual account-based program under the PERS tax-qualified governmental plan as defined under ORS 
238A.400.  
An IAP member becomes vested on the date the employee account is established or on the date the rollover account was 
established. If the employer makes optional employer contributions for a member, the member becomes vested on the 
earliest of the following dates: the date the member completes 600 hours of service in each of five calendar years, the 
date the member reaches normal retirement age, the date the IAP is terminated, the date the active member becomes dis-
abled, or the date the active member dies.  
 
Upon retirement, a member of the Individual Account Program (IAP) may receive the amounts in his or her employee 
account, rollover account, and vested employer account as a lump-sum payment or in equal installments over a 5-, 10-, 
15-, 20-year period or an anticipated life span option.  

Death Benefits  

Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives in a lump sum the member’s account balance, rollover 
account balance, and vested employer optional contribution account balance. If a retired member dies before the install-
ment payments are completed, the beneficiary may receive the remaining installment payments or choose a lump-sum 
payment.   

Recordkeeping  

OPERS contracts with VOYA Financial to maintain IAP participant records.   
 
4. Postemployment Healthcare Benefits. 
  
ORS 238.420 established the Retirement Health Insurance Account (RHIA) and authorizes a payment of up to $60 from 
RHIA toward the monthly cost of health insurance for eligible PERS members. RHIA is a cost-sharing, multiple-
employer OPEB plan for 900 participating employers. The plan was closed to new entrants hired on or after August 29, 
2003. 
 
To be eligible to receive this monthly payment toward the premium costs, the member must: (1) have eight years or 
more of qualifying service in PERS at the time of retirement or receive a disability allowance as if the member had eight 
years or more of creditable service in PERS, (2) receive both Medicare Parts A and B coverage, and (3) enroll in a 
PERS-sponsored health plan. 
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PENSION PLAN (Cont.): 
 
Description of Funding and Contributions for PERS Benefit Plans 
 
OPERS’ funding policy provides for periodic member and employer contributions at rates established by the Public Em-
ployees Retirement Board, subject to limits set in statute. Contributions for employers are recognized on the accrual ba-
sis of accounting. Employer contributions to OPERS are calculated based on creditable compensation for active mem-
bers reported by employers. The rates established for member and employer contributions were approved based on the 
recommendations of the System’s third-party actuary.  The contribution rate for every employer has at least two major 
components; Normal Cost Rate and Unfunded Actuarial Liability (UAL) Rate. 
 
The City’s employer contributions for the year ended June 30, 2022 were $159,501 excluding amounts to fund employer 
specific liabilities.  The contribution rates in effect for the period July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2023 were: Tier1/Tier2 – 
22.22%, OPSRP General Service – 19.75%, and OPSRP Police and Fire – 24.11%. 
 
Member Contributions 
Beginning January 1, 2004, all member contributions, except for contributions by judge members, were placed in the 
OPSRP Individual Account Program (IAP). Prior to that date, all member contributions were credited to the Defined 
Benefit Pension Plan. Member contributions are set by statute at 6.0 percent of salary and are remitted by participating 
employers. The contributions are either deducted from member salaries or paid by the employers on the members behalf. 
 
During FY 2021-2022, approximately $45,763 in employee IAP contributions were paid or picked up by the City. 
 
Employer Contributions 
PERS funding policy provides for monthly employer contributions at actuarially determined rates. These contributions, 
expressed as a percentage of covered payroll, are intended to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. This 
funding policy applies to the PERS Defined Benefit Plan and OPEB (Other Post Employment Benefit) Plans. Employer 
contribution rates during the period were based on the December 31, 2019, actuarial valuation, which became effective 
July 1, 2021. The state of Oregon and certain schools, community colleges, and political subdivisions have made sup-
plemental unfunded actuarial liability payments, and their rates have been reduced.  Effective January 1, 2020, Senate 
Bill 1049 required employers to pay contributions on re-employed PERS retirees’ salary as if they were an active mem-
ber, excluding IAP (6 percent) contributions.  
 
For Oregon PERS Defined Benefit Plans, based on the actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2019, the state agencies, 
the judiciary, schools, and political subdivisions all had decreases in employer contribution rates on July 1, 2021. These 
rate changes are measured against the actual average rates paid since the last rate-setting valuation. Every two years, the 
PERS Board adjusts contributions so that, over time, those contributions will be sufficient to fund the benefits earned, if 
earnings follow assumptions.  

 
For Oregon PERS OPSRP Benefit Plans, all OPERS employers with OPSRP Pension Program members are actuarial-
ly pooled and share the same contribution rate.  Each of these rates includes a component related to disability benefits 
for General Service and Police and Fire members. 
 
Members of OPSRP are required to contribute six percent of their salary covered under the plan which is invested in the 
IAP.   For employees in Tier One / Tier two, the Employer makes this contribution on behalf of its members. 
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PENSION PLAN (Cont.): 
 
For Oregon PERS Postemployment Benefit Plans, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, PERS employers contrib-
uted 0.06 percent of PERS-covered salaries for Tier One and Tier Two members to fund the normal cost portion of 
RHIA benefits. No UAL rate was assigned for the RHIA program as it was funded at 126.4 percent as of December 31, 
2017. These rates were based on the December 31, 2017, actuarial valuation. 
 
Employer contributions are advance-funded on an actuarially determined basis. There is no inflation assumption for 
RHIA postemployment benefits because the payment amount is set by statute and is not adjusted for increases in 
healthcare costs. 
 
ORS 238.415 established the Retiree Health Insurance Premium Account (RHIPA) and requires the Board on or before 
January 1 of each year to calculate the average difference between the health insurance premiums paid by retired state 
employees under contracts entered into by the Board and health insurance premiums paid by active state employees. 
 
For OPSRP Pension Program,  all OPERS employers with OPSRP Pension Program members are actuarially pooled 
and share the same contribution rate.  Each of these rates includes a component related to disability benefits for General 
Service and Police and Fire members. 
 
Pension Plan CAFR /ACFR   
 
Oregon PERS produces an independently audited ACFR which can be found at:   
https://www.oregon.gov/pers/Documents/Financials/CAFR/2021-ACFR.pdf 
 
Actuarial Valuations  
 
The employer contribution rates effective July 1, 2021, through June 30, 2023, were set using the Entry Age Normal ac-
tuarial cost method.  
 
For the Tier One/Tier Two component of the OPERS Defined Benefit Plan, this method produced an employer contribu-
tion rate consisting of (1) an amount for normal cost (the estimated amount necessary to finance benefits earned by the 
employees during the current service year), (2) an amount for the amortization of unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities, 
which are being amortized over a fixed period with new unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities being amortized over 20 
years by ongoing Board policy.  However, upon passage of Senate Bill 1049, the Legislature directed the PERS Board to 
enact a one-time re-amortization of Tier 1/Tier 2 UAL over 22 years. This means that, effective with the December 31, 
2019 rate-setting valuation, the entire unamortized Tier 1/Tier 2 UAL for each rate pool and independent employer will 
be re-amortized over a 22 year period as a level percentage of projected future payroll. 
 
For the OPSRP Pension Program component of the OPERS Defined Benefit Plan, this method produced an employer 
contribution rate consisting of (a) an amount for normal cost (the estimated amount necessary to finance benefits earned 
by the employees during the current service year), (b) an amount for the amortization of unfunded actuarial accrued lia-
bilities, which are being amortized over a fixed period with new unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities being amortized 
over 16 years.   
 
For the Postemployment Healthcare component, the RHIA plan fiduciary net position balance represents the program’s 
accumulation of employer contributions and investment earnings less premium subsidies and administrative expenses 
No UAL rate was assigned for the RHIA program as it was funded at 126.4 percent as of December 31, 2017. Typically, 
PERS employers contribute an actuarially determined percent of all PERS-covered salaries to amortize the unfunded ac-
tuarial accrued liability over a fixed period with new unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities being amortized over 10 
years. 
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PENSION PLAN (Cont.): 
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used in Developing Total Pension Liability 
  

 
 

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of projected benefits and assumptions about the 
probability of events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual re-
sults are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. Experience studies are performed 
as of December 31 of even numbered years.  The methods and assumptions shown above are based on the 2018 Experi-
ence Study which reviewed experience for the four-year period ending on December 31, 2018. 
 
Discount Rate  

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.90 percent for the Defined Benefit Pension Plan. The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members and those of 
the contributing employers are made at the contractually required rates, as actuarially determined. Based on those as-
sumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit 
payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments for the 
Defined Benefit Pension Plan was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension lia-
bility.   
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PENSION PLAN (Cont.): 
 
Depletion Date Projection 
 
 GASB 67 generally requires that a blended discount rate be used to measure the Total Pension Liability (the Actuarial 
Accrued Liability calculated using the Individual Entry Age Normal Cost Method). The long-term expected return on 
plan investments may be used to discount liabilities to the extent that the plan’s Fiduciary Net Position is projected to 
cover benefit payments and administrative expenses. A 20-year high quality (AA/Aa or higher) municipal bond rate 
must be used for periods where the Fiduciary Net Position is not projected to cover benefit payments and administrative 
expenses. Determining the discount rate under GASB 67 will often require that the actuary perform complex projections 
of future benefit payments and pension plan investments. GASB 67 (paragraph 43) does allow for alternative evalua-
tions of projected solvency, if such evaluation can reliably be made. GASB does not contemplate a specific method for 
making an alternative evaluation of sufficiency; it is left to professional judgment.  
  
The following circumstances justify an alternative evaluation of sufficiency for OPERS:   
- OPERS has a formal written policy to calculate an Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC), which is articulated in 
the actuarial valuation report.   
- The ADC is based on a closed, layered amortization period, which means that payment of the full ADC each year will 
bring the plan to a 100% funded position by the end of the amortization period if future experience follows assumption.   
- GASB 67 specifies that the projections regarding future solvency assume that plan assets earn the assumed rate of re-
turn and there are no future changes in the plan provisions or actuarial methods and assumptions, which means that the 
projections would not reflect any adverse future experience which might impact the plan’s funded position.   
 
Based on these circumstances, it is our independent actuary’s opinion that the detailed depletion date projections out-
lined in GASB 67 would clearly indicate that the Fiduciary Net Position is always projected to be sufficient to cover 
benefit payments and administrative expenses.   
 
OIC Target and Actual Investment Allocation as of June 30, 2021 
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PENSION PLAN (Cont.): 
 
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return  
 
To develop an analytical basis for the selection of the long-term expected rate of return assumption, in June 2021 the 
Oregon PERS Board reviewed long-term assumptions developed by both Milliman’s capital market assumptions team 
and the Oregon Investment Council’s (OIC) investment advisors. Each asset class assumption is based on a consistent 
set of underlying assumptions and includes adjustment for the inflation assumption. These assumptions are not based on 
historical returns, but instead are based on a forward-looking capital market economic model. The table below shows 
Milliman’s assumptions for each of the asset classes in which the plan was invested at that time based on the OIC long-
term target asset allocation. The OIC’s description of each asset class was used to map the target allocation to the asset 
classes shown below.  

 

 
 

Sensitivity Analysis  
 
The following presents the employer’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate 
of 6.90 percent, as well as what the employer’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calcu-
lated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (5.90 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (7.90 percent) 
than the current rate: 

 
  

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

5.90% 6.90% 7.90%

Employer's proportionate share of the net 
pension liability 1,606,523$       818,085$          158,448$          
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PENSION PLAN (Cont.): 
 
Changes in Actuarial Methods and Allocation Procedures 
 

There were no changes in actuarial methods and allocation procedures since the December 31,2020 actuarial valuation. 
 

Changes in Assumptions 
 

There were no changes in actuarial methods and allocation procedures since the December 31,2020 actuarial valuation. 
 
Mortality Rates  
A summary of the current assumed mortality rates and recommended changes is shown below: 
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PENSION PLAN (Cont.): 
 
Changes Subsequent to the Measurement Date 
 
There were no changes subsequent to the measurement date, that we are aware of. 
 
Deferred Items  
 

Deferred items are calculated at the system-wide level and are allocated to employers based on their proportionate share.  
For the measurement period ending June 30, 2020, employers will report the following deferred items: 
 

 A difference between expected and actual experience, which is being amortized over the remaining service lives 
of all plan participants, including retirees.  One year of this amortization is included in the employer’s total pen-
sion expense for the measurement period.  

 

 
Employer Contributions 
 

OPERS includes accrued contributions when due pursuant to legal requirements, as of June 30 in its Statement of 
Changes in Fiduciary Net Position.  
 
Beginning with fiscal year 2016, OPERS will be able to report cash contributions and UAL side account amortization by 
employer, and will publish this information on the OPERS Website. Prior to fiscal year 2016, contributions to the 
OPSRP Defined Benefit plan were not accounted for by employer, as all employers were pooled for actuarial purposes. 
 

Elements of Changes in Net Position  
 

This information can be found in the Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability found on page 76, of the June 30, 
2021 Oregon PERS ACFR. 
 

 
Pension Liabilities/(Assets), Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 
 

At June 30, 2022, the employer reported a liability of $818,085 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. 
The net pension liability/(asset) was measured as of June 30, 2021, and the total pension liability used to calculate the 
net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The employer’s proportion of the net pen-
sion liability was based on a projection of the employer’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to 
the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. 
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PENSION PLAN (Cont.): 
 
At June 30, 2022, the employer’s proportion was 0.00683647%. 

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the employer recognized pension expense of $79,995. On June 30, 2021, the employer 
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following 
sources: 

 

 
Contributions of $159,501 for PERS defined benefits, were made subsequent to the measurement date, but prior to the 
end of the District’s reporting period. These contributions, which are reported as deferred outflows of resources related 
to pensions, will be included as a reduction of the net pension liability in next fiscal year. 
 
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be 
recognized in pension expense/(income) as follows: 
 
 

 
  

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience 76,578$       -$                

Changes of assumptions 204,791       2,153            

-                 605,622        

57,282         225,156        

7,329           55,096          

345,980$     888,027$      

159,501       N/A

Total Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of Resources 505,481$     888,027$      

Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of Resources 
prior to post-measurement date contributions (542,047)       

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 
investments

Changes in proportionate share

Differences between employer contributions and 
employer's proportionate share of system contributions

Total Deferred Outflows/Inflows

Post-measurement date contributions

Employer subsequent 
fiscal years

1st Fiscal Year (97,956)$             
2nd Fiscal Year (105,863)             
3rd Fiscal Year (144,912)             
4th Fiscal Year (194,821)             
5th Fiscal Year 1,505                  
Thereafter -                        
Total (542,047)$           

Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of Resources (prior 
to post-measurement date contributions)
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OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) RHIA: 
 
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Systems’ (OPERS) Retiree Health Insurance Account (RHIA) 
 
Plan Description 
 
The City contributes to the Oregon Public Employees Retirement Systems’ (OPERS) Retiree Health Insurance Account 
(RHIA), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit post-employment healthcare plan administered by the Oregon 
Public Employees Retirement Board (OPERB). The plan, which was established under Oregon Revised Statutes 
238.420, provides a payment of up to $60 per month towards the costs of health insurance for eligible OPERS retirees. 
RHIA post-employment benefits are set by state statute. The plan was closed to new entrants hired on or after August 
29, 2003.  
 
To be eligible to receive this monthly payment toward the premium cost the member must: (1) have eight years or more 
of qualifying service in OPERS at the time of retirement or receive a disability allowance as if the member had eight 
years or more of creditable service in OPERS, (2) receive both Medicare Parts A and B coverage, and (3) enroll in an 
OPERS-sponsored health plan. A surviving spouse or dependent of a deceased OPERS retiree who was eligible to re-
ceive the subsidy is eligible to receive the subsidy if he or she (1) is receiving a retirement benefit or allowance from 
OPERS or (2) was insured at the time the member died and the member retired before May 1, 1991. 
 
Employer contributions are advance-funded on an actuarially determined basis. There is no inflation assumption for 
RHIA postemployment benefits because the payment amount is set by statute and is not adjusted for increases in 
healthcare costs. 
 
A comprehensive annual financial report of the funds administered by the OPERB may be obtained by writing to Ore-
gon Public Employees Retirement System, P.O. Box 23700, Tigard, OR 97281-3700, by calling (503) 598-7377, or by 
accessing the OPERS web site at https://www.oregon.gov/pers/Pages/Financials/Actuarial-Financial-Information.aspx. 
 
Funding Policy 
 
Participating employers are contractually required to contribute at a rate assessed bi-annually by the OPERB.   
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, state agencies contributed 0.06 and 0.12 percent of PERS-covered salaries for 
Tier One and Tier Two members to fund the normal cost portion of RHIA and RHIPA benefits, respectively. 
No UAL rate was assigned for the RHIA program as it was funded at 126.4 percent as of December 31, 2017. Typically, 
PERS employers contribute an actuarially determined percent of all PERS-covered salaries to amortize the unfunded ac-
tuarial accrued liability over a fixed period with new unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities being amortized over 10 
years. 
 
Contributions 
 
The City’s contributions to OPERS’ RHIA for the years ended June 30, 2022, 2021, and 2020 were $105, $95, and $99 
respectively, which equaled the required contributions for the year. 
 
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used in Developing Total Pension Liability 
 
All assumptions, methods and plan provisions used in these calculations are described in the Oregon PERS Retirement 
Health Insurance Account Cost Sharing Multiple Employer Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) Plan Schedules of 
Employer Allocations and OPEB Amounts by Employer report, as of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2021. That inde-
pendently audited report was dated February 25, 2022 and can be found at: 
https://sos.oregon.gov/audits/Documents/2022-09.pdf 
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OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) RHIA (Cont.): 
 

 
 
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of value of reported amounts and assumptions about the prob-
ability of events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual results are 
compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. Experience studies are performed as of De-
cember 31 of even numbered years. The method and assumptions shown are based on the 2018 Experience Study which 
is reviewed for the four-year period ending December 31, 2018. 
 
Discount Rate 
 
The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 6.90 percent. The projection of cash flows used to deter-
mine the discount rate assumed that contributions from contributing employers are made at the contractually required 
rates, as actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the RHIA plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be 
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long term expected rate 
of return on OPEB plan investments for the RHIA plan was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to de-
termine the total OPEB liability. 
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OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) RHIA (Cont.): 
 
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return  
 
To develop an analytical basis for the selection of the long-term expected rate of return assumption, in June 2021 the 
PERS Board reviewed long-term assumptions developed by both Milliman’s capital market assumptions team and the 
Oregon Investment Council’s (OIC) investment advisors. Table 31 on page 74 shows Milliman’s assumptions for each 
of the asset classes in which the plans were invested at that time based on the OIC long-term target asset allocation. The 
OIC’s description of each asset class was used to map the target allocation to the asset classes shown on page 74. Each 
asset class assumption is based on a consistent set of underlying assumptions and includes adjustment for the inflation 
assumption. These assumptions are not based on historical returns, but instead are based on a forward-looking capital 
market economic model.  For more information on the Plan’s portfolio, assumed asset allocation, and the long-term ex-
pected rate of return for each major class, calculated using both arithmetic and geometric means, see Pension Plan note 
disclosure above or the PERS’ audited financial statements at: 
https://www.oregon.gov/pers/Documents/Financials/CAFR/2021-ACFR.pdf 
 
Sensitivity Analysis 
 

The following presents the employer’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability/(asset) calculated using the discount 
rate of 6.90 percent, as well as what the employer’s proportionate share of the OPEB liability/(asset) would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (5.90 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (7.90 per-
cent) than the current rate: 

 
 

OPEB Liabilities/(Assets), OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB 
 
At June 30, 2022, the City reported a net OPEB RHIA liability/(asset) of $(12,236) for its proportionate share of the net 
OPEB RHIA liability/(asset). The OPEB liability/(asset) was measured as of June 30, 2021, and the total OPEB RHIA 
liability/(asset) used to calculate the net OPEB RHIA liability/(asset) was determined by an actuarial valuation as of De-
cember 31, 2019. Consistent with GASB Statement No. 75, paragraph 59(a), The City’s proportion of the net OPEB 
RHIA liability/(asset) is determined by comparing the employer’s actual, legally required contributions made during the 
fiscal year to the Plan with the total actual contributions made in the fiscal year of all employers. As of the measurement 
date of June 30, 2021, the City’s proportion was 0.00356319 percent. OPEB RHIA expense/(income) recorded for the 
year ended June 30, 2022 was $(500). 

  

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

5.90% 6.90% 7.90%

Employer's proportionate share of the net 
OPEB liability (10,821)$          (12,236)$          (13,445)$          
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OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) RHIA: 
 

At June 30, 2022, the employer reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
OPEB from the following sources: 

 
 
Contributions of  $105 were made subsequent to the measurement date, but prior to the end of the City’s reporting peri-
od. These contributions, which are reported as deferred outflows (inflows) of resources related to OPEB, will be includ-
ed as a reduction of the net OPEB liability in the next fiscal year. 
 
Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB’s will be recognized in OBEB ex-
pense as follows: 
 

 
Changes Subsequent to the Measurement Date 

 
We are not aware of any changes subsequent to the June 30, 2021 Measurement Date that meet this requirement and 
thus require a brief description under the GASB standard. 

  

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience -$               340$            
Changes of assumptions 241             182              

-                 2,908            

2,810           2,677            

-                 -                  

3,051$         6,107$          

105             N/A

Total Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of Resources 3,156$         6,107$          

Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of Resources 
prior to post-measurement date contributions (3,056)          

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 
investements

Changes in proportionate share

Differences between employer contributions and 
employer's proportionate share of system contributions

Total Deferred Outflows/Inflows

Post-measurement date contributions

Employer subsequent 
fiscal years

1st Fiscal Year 213$                  
2nd Fiscal Year (1,688)                
3rd Fiscal Year (664)                   
4th Fiscal Year (917)                   
5th Fiscal Year -                        
Thereafter -                        
Total (3,056)$               

Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of Resources (prior 
to post-measurement date contributions)
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OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) CIS: 
 

Retiree Healthcare Insurance Premiums Subsidy 
 
Plan Description 
 
The City operates a single employer retiree benefit plan through the Citycounty Insurance Services that provides post-
employment health, dental vision and life insurance benefits to eligible employees and their spouses.  The City is re-
quired by Oregon Revised Statutes 243.303 to provide retirees and their dependents with group health insurance from 
the date of retirement to age 65 at the same rate provided to current employees. Premiums for retirees are tiered and 
based upon the premium rates available to active employees. The retiree is responsible for any portion of the premiums 
not paid by the Employer. The implicit employer subsidy is measured as the expected health care cost per retiree and 
dependent, less the gross premiums charged by the insurance carrier for that coverage. The subsidy is only measured for 
retirees and spouses younger than age 65, at which point such retirees and spouses typically become eligible for Medi-
care. GASB Statement 75 is applicable to the City due only to this implicit rate subsidy.  This “plan” is not a stand-alone 
plan, and therefore, does not issue its own financial statements. 
 
Funding Policy 
 
When the City has retirees participating in their health insurance plan, it will, when applicable, collect insurance premi-
ums from all retirees each month and deposit them.  The City will then pay healthcare insurance premiums for all retir-
ees at the applicable rate for each family classification.   
 
At June 30, 2022, the City reported a net OPEB IRSP liability/(asset) of $48,319 for its proportionate share of the net 
OPEB IRSP liability/(asset). The OPEB IRSP liability/(asset) was measured as of June 30, 2021, and the total OPEB 
IRSP liability/(asset) used to calculate the net OPEB IRSP liability/(asset) was determined by an actuarial valuation as 
of July 1, 2020. Consistent with GASB Statement No. 75, paragraph 59(a), The City’s proportion of the net OPEB IRSP 
liability/(asset) is determined by comparing the employer’s actual, legally required contributions made during the fiscal 
year to the Plan with the total actual contributions made in the fiscal year of all employers. As of the measurement date 
of June 30, 2021, the City’s OPEB IRSP expense/(income) for the year ended June 30, 2022 was $5,052. 
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions - The City engaged an actuary to perform an evaluation as of July 1, 2020 using en-
try age normal Actuarial Cost Method. The total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of the valu-
ation date, calculated based on the discount rate and actuarial assumptions below, and was then projected forward to the 
measurement date: 
 

 
  

Discount Rate 3.50% 2.21% 2.16%
Other Key Actuarial Assumptions and 
Methods
Valuation date July 1, 2018 July 1, 2020 July 1, 2020
Measurement date June 30, 2019 June 30, 2020 June 30, 2021
Inflation 2.50% 2.50% 2.50%
Salary increases 3.50% 3.50% 3.50%
Withdrawal, retirement, and mortality rates December 31, 2017 

Oregon PERS valuation
December 31, 2019 Oregon 
PERS valuation

December 31, 2019 
Oregon PERS valuation

Election and Lapse Rates 40% of eligible employees
60% of male members and 
35% of females members 
will elect spouse coverage.  
5% annual lapse rate

40% of eligible employees
60% of male members and 
35% of females members will 
elect spouse coverage.  
5% annual lapse rate

40% of eligible employees
60% of male members and 
35% of females members 
will elect spouse coverage.  
5% annual lapse rate

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal Entry Age Normal Entry Age Normal
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OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) CIS (Cont.): 
 
Discount Rate  
 
Under GASB 75, unfunded plans must use a discount rate that reflects a 20-year tax-exempt municipal bond yield or in-
dex rate. The assumptions in this report reflect the Bond Buyer 20-Year General Obligation Bond Index. The discount 
rate in effect for the June 30, 2021 reporting date is 2.21%, and the discount rate in effect for the June 30, 2022 reporting 
date is 2.16%. 
 
Health Care Cost Trend  
 
The assumed medical and vision costs will increase 5.25% for FYE June 30, 2022. In future years, the medical and vi-
sion cost trend varies between 5.00% and 4.00% due to the timing of the excise tax scheduled to affect health care bene-
fits. The trend then settles to an ultimate rate of 4.00%.  
 
Withdrawal, Retirement and Mortality Rates 
 
They are generally using the rates adopted by the Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) for its Decem-
ber 31, 2019 actuarial valuation of retirement benefits. 
 
Election and Lapse Rates 
 
They have assumed that a portion of future retirees and their spouses elect benefits, and that some of those later lapse 
(drop) from those benefits. The assumptions are based on historical data for similar benefits for other public employers 
in Oregon. For larger employers, they also consider specific historical experience; and for unique arrangements they 
consider the incentives provided by those arrangements. 
 
Sensitivity Analysis 
 
The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Plan, calculated using the disclosure discount rate as well as what 
the Plan's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1 
percentage point higher than the current rate. A similar sensitivity analysis is then presented for changes in the 
healthcare cost trend assumption. 

 
 

 
  

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

1.16% 2.16% 3.16%

Total OPEB liability from Implicit Rate 
Subsidy 51,212$            48,319$            45,500$            

Trend Rate 1% Decrease Trend Rate 1% Increase

Total OPEB liability from Implicit Rate 
Subsidy 43,579$            48,319$            53,873$            
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OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) CIS (Cont.): 
 
Participation 
 
The following table represents the number of the City’s covered participants: 

 

 
 
 
Changes in Net OPEB IRSP Liability 

 
  

Count as of  Actuarial 
date 7/1/2020

PERS 
Police & 

Fire

PERS 
General 
Service Total

Number of Members

Active 0 12 12

Retired Members 0 0 0

Spouses of Ineligible Retirees 0 1 1

Total Participants 0 13 13

Spouses of Eligible Retirees 0 0 0

Changes in Total OPEB Liability

Increase 
(Decrease) 

Total OPEB 
Liability

Balance as of June 30, 2021  $       50,095 

Changes for the year:

Service Cost               3,375 
Interest               1,111 
Effect of assumptions or other inputs                 154 
Benefit payments             (6,416)

Net OPEB Liability at June 30, 2022  $       48,319 
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OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) CIS (Cont.): 
 
Components of OPEB Expense  

 

Schedule of Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources 

 
 

Other amounts currently reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to other 
postemployment benefits will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:  
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

OPEB Expense
July 1, 2021 to
June 30, 2022

Service cost 3,375            
Interest on total OPEB liability 1,111            
Recognition of Deferred (Inflows)/Outflows of Resources -                   

Recognition of economic/demographic (gains) or losses -                   
Recognition of assumption changes 566               

OPEB Expense 5,052$          

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience -$               -$                

Changes of assumptions or inputs 2,800           -                  

2,800$         -$                

-                 N/A

Total Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of Resources 2,800$         -$                

Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of Resources 2,800            

Total Deferred Outflows/Inflows

Post-measurement date contributions

Employer subsequent 
fiscal years

1st Fiscal Year 566$                  
2nd Fiscal Year 566                    
3rd Fiscal Year 566                    
4th Fiscal Year 566                    
5th Fiscal Year 514                    
Thereafter 22                      
Total 2,800$                

Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of Resources (prior 
to post-measurement date contributions)
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES: 

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to review and adjustment by grantor agencies, princi-
pally the federal government.  Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of 
the applicable funds.  The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined 
at this time although the City expects such amount, if any, to be immaterial.   

The City of Harrisburg has elected the "reimbursement" basis for unemployment claims to the State of Oregon Depart-
ment of Human Resources Employment Division. If a terminated employee collects unemployment compensation based 
upon earnings from the City, the City will be required to reimburse the State of Oregon for the amount of unemployment 
compensation paid. Amounts billed by the State of Oregon are charged to expenditures but amounts for which the City is 
potentially liable as a result of claims not yet filed are unknown. 
 
RISK MANAGEMENT: 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and 
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City is a member of City-County Insurance Services (CIS), 
a public entity risk pool currently operating a common risk management and insurance program.  The City pays an an-
nual premium to CIS for insurance coverage.   
 
Based on the experience of the City and pool, the City may be liable for an additional premium of up to approximately 
20% of its initial premium or it may receive a refund.  The City has never had to pay an additional premium.  Predeter-
mined limits and deductible amounts are stated in the policy. There have been no significant reductions in coverage from 
the prior years and settlements have not exceeded insurance coverage in the past three years. 
 
 
INTERFUND TRANSFERS: 

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2022, were as follows: 
 

 
These transfers occur on a routine basis and are used by the recipient funds for the normal operations of the funds. 
 
 
 
 
 

Transfers Transfers
Out In

General Fund 497,500$        6,750             

Community & Economic Development Fun -                    120,000          

Library Fund -                    85,000           

Office Equipment Fund -                    55,000           

Equipment Reserve Fund -                    78,900           

Sewer Fund 46,300            53,000           

Storm Drain Reserve Fund -                    5,000             

Street Fund 26,300            170,000          

Water Fund 46,300            42,000           

Building Permit Fund 5,600             5,000             

Electrical Permit Fund 1,150             2,500             

Total 623,150$        623,150$        
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EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATION 

The City over expended appropriations in the following funds: 

 
 

 

Appropriation Expenditure Variance

120,750         120,791        41               

99,300           103,167        3,867          

Sewer/Debt Service/Principal 0  45,000  45,000

Harrisburg Renewal Agency/Debt Service/Interest 
and Fees

Fund / Category

Harrisburg Renewal Agency/Debt Service/Principal
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Actual Variance with
Amounts Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts (Budgetary Basis) Over
Original Final (See Note 1) (Under)

REVENUES:

Taxes and Assessments 654,096$    654,096$         701,102$            47,006$        

Intergovernmental 107,900      107,900           124,839              16,939          

Franchise Fees 307,980      307,980           325,615              17,635          

Licenses and Permits 12,500        12,500             26,402                13,902          

Fines and Forfeitures 32,050        32,050             57,438                25,388          

Investment Revenue 3,860         3,860              1,553                  (2,307)          

Grants 437,200      437,200           444,482              7,282            

Other Revenue 10,850        10,850             11,920                1,070            

Total Revenues 1,566,436 1,566,436      1,693,351         126,915      

EXPENDITURES:

Personnel Services 434,435      434,435           431,460              (2,975)          

Materials and Services 906,690      906,690           531,227              (375,463)       

Capital Outlay 40,000        40,000             4,817                  (35,183)         

Contingency 243,040      243,040           -                        (243,040)       

Total Expenditures 1,624,165 1,624,165      967,504            (656,661)     

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

Over Expenditures (57,729)      (57,729)           725,847              783,576        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES / (USES):

Operating Transfer In 6,750         6,750              6,750                  -                  

Operating Transfer (Out) (497,500)     (497,500)          (497,500)             -                  

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (490,750)   (490,750)        (490,750)           -                  

Net Change in Fund Balance (548,479)     (548,479)          235,097              783,576        

Fund Balance - July 1, 2021 857,215      857,215           964,798              107,583        

Fund Balance - June 30, 2022 308,736$  308,736$       1,199,895$       891,159$    

CITY OF HARRISBURG

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

 GENERAL FUND

and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
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Actual Variance with

Amounts Final Budget

(Budgetary Basis) Over

Original Final (See Note 1) (Under)
REVENUES:

Taxes and Assessments 396$          396$           958$                  562$            

Intergovernmental 986,100      986,100       290,555              (695,545)       

Investment Revenue 3,350         3,350          1,348                  (2,002)          

Miscellaneous Revenue 900            900             745                    (155)             

Total Revenues 990,746    990,746     293,606            (697,140)     

EXPENDITURES:

Personnel Services 56,350        56,350        43,377                (12,973)         

Materials and Services 90,110        90,110        73,426                (16,684)         

Capital Outlay 1,125,000   1,125,000    978,001              (146,999)       

Contingency 174,674      174,674       -                        (174,674)       

Total Expenditures 1,446,134 1,446,134  1,094,804         (351,330)     

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

Over Expenditures (455,388)     (455,388)     (801,198)             (345,810)       

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES / (USES):

Operating Transfer In 170,000      170,000       170,000              -                  

Operating Transfer Out (26,300)      (26,300)       (26,300)               -                  

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 143,700    143,700     143,700            -                  

Net Change In Fund Balance (311,688)     (311,688)     (657,498)             (345,810)       

Fund Balance - July 1, 2021 640,000      640,000       962,345              322,345        

Fund Balance - June 30, 2022 328,312$  328,312$   304,847$          (23,465)$     

Budgeted Amounts

CITY OF HARRISBURG

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

STREET FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022
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Actual Variance with
Amounts Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts (Budgetary Basis) Over
Original Final (See Note 1) (Under)

REVENUES:

Taxes and Assessments 239,260$    239,260$     436,309$            197,049$      

Investment Revenue 15,000        15,000        10,924                (4,076)          

Grants 82,000        82,000        81,784                (216)             

Other Revenue -                -                 37,586                37,586          

Total Revenues 336,260    336,260     566,603            230,343      

EXPENDITURES:

Materials and Supplies 28,450        28,450        15,960                (12,490)         

Capital Outlay 1,495,120   1,495,120    183,023              (1,312,097)    

Debt Service

Principal 120,750      120,750       120,791              41                

Interest and Fees 99,300        99,300        103,167              3,867            

Total Expenditures 1,743,620 1,743,620  422,941            (1,320,679)  

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

Over Expenditures (1,407,360)  (1,407,360)   143,662              1,551,022      

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES / (USES):

Loan Proceeds 13,160        13,160        -                        (13,160)         

Total Other Financing Sources 13,160      13,160       -                        (13,160)       

Net Change In Fund Balance (1,394,200)  (1,394,200)   143,662              1,537,862      

Fund Balance - July 1, 2021 1,394,200   1,394,200    1,790,757            396,557        

Prior Period Adjustment 142,941              

Fund Balance - June 30, 2022 -$              -$               2,077,360$       1,934,419$ 

Reconciliation to generally accepted accounting principles basis

Net Change in Fund Balance  - from above 143,662              

11,794                

Payments Collected on Loans Receivable

Change in Accrued Interest (3,953)                

Loan Receivable Disbursements (2,848)                

Change in Net Position as Reported in Proprietary Funds 

  Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 148,655$            

Disbursements of Loan Amounts are Not Expenditures
   for Fund Financial Reporting

CITY OF HARRISBURG

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, 

HARRISBURG REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY FUND - A COMPONENT UNIT

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
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(b/c)
Employer's

(a) (b) Plan fiduciary
Employer's Employer's (c) net position as

Measurement proportion of proportionate share Employer's a percentage of 
Date  the net pension  of the net pension covered the total pension

June 30, liability (asset) liability (asset) payroll liability

2022 0.00683647% 818,085$              762,339$        107.31% 87.6%
2021 0.00821571% 1,792,951             537,113         333.81% 75.8%
2020 0.00847946% 1,466,744             651,070         225.28% 80.2%
2019 0.00745724% 1,129,674             797,117         141.72% 82.1%
2018 0.00781471% 1,053,426             875,307         120.35% 83.1%
2017 0.00647747% 972,419                805,323         120.75% 91.9%
2016 0.00896029% 514,452                800,417         64.27% 91.9%
2015 0.00955061% (216,485)              833,570         -25.97% 103.6%
2014 0.00955061% 487,382$              833,570$        58.47% 92.0%

*This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However the full 10-year 
trend will be presented for those years for which information is available

CITY OF HARRISBURG

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE 
NET PENSION LIABILITY

PERS

Last 10 Fiscal Years*

proportionate share 
of the net pension 

liability (asset) as a 
percentage of its 
covered payroll
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(b) (b/c)

(a) Contributions in (a-b) (c) Contributions

Year Contractually relation to the Contribution Employer's as a percent

Ended required contractually required deficiency covered of covered

June 30, contribution contribution (excess) payroll payroll

2022 159,501$       159,501$           -$                762,339$        20.92%
2021 152,617         152,617             -                  537,133          28.41%
2020 124,178         124,178             -                  651,070          19.07%
2019 114,355         114,355             -                  797,117          14.35%
2018 107,405         107,405             -                  875,307          15.33%
2017 123,456         123,456             -                  805,323          15.33%
2016 122,704         122,704             -                  800,417          12.27%
2015 102,279         102,279             -                  833,570          12.27%
2014 143,030         143,030             -                  1,165,689       12.12%
2013 119,316$       119,316$           -$                984,455$        12.12%

CITY OF HARRISBURG

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

PERS

Last 10 Fiscal Years
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CITY OF HARRISBURG

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE 

Last 10 Fiscal Years*

(b/c)

Employer's

(a) (b) Plan fiduciary

Employer's Employer's (c) net position as

Measurement proportion of proportionate share Employer's a percentage of 

Date  the net OPEB  of the net OPEB covered the total OPEB

June 30, liability (asset) liability (asset) payroll liability

2022 0.00356319% (12,236)$              762,339$       -1.61% 183.9%

2021 0.00138483% (2,822)                 537,133         -0.53% 150.1%

2020 0.00720404% (13,921)                651,070         -0.99% 144.4%

2019 0.00703468% (7,853)                 797,117         -0.99% 124.0%

2018 0.00662924% (2,767)                 875,307         -0.32% 108.9%

2017 0.00709781% 1,927$                 805,323$       0.24% 94.2%

NET OPEB LIABILITY

OPEB RHIA

proportionate share 
of the net OPEB 

liability (asset) as a 
percentage of its 
covered payroll

*This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However the full 10-year 
trend will be presented for those years for which information is available
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(b) (c) (b/c)

(a) Contributions in (a-b) Employer's Contributions

Year Contractually relation to the Contribution covered as a percent

Ended required contractually required deficiency employee  of covered

June 30, contribution contribution (excess) payroll payroll

2022 105$          105$                          -$             762,339$      0.01%
2021 95              95                              -               537,133        0.02%
2020 99              99                              -               651,070        0.02%
2019 3,570         3,570                         -               797,117        0.45%
2018 3,406         3,406                         -               875,307        0.39%
2017 3,324         3,324                         -               805,323        0.41%
2016 3,282         3,282                         -               800,417        0.41%
2015 2,736$       2,736$                       -$             833,570$      0.33%

CITY OF HARRISBURG

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

OPEB RHIA

Last 10 Fiscal Years*

*This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However the 
full 10-year trend will be presented for those years for which information is available
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Water Fund
Total         

Water Utility
ASSETS:

Current Assets:
Cash and Investments 5,637,549$      192,306$      5,829,855$      
Accounts Receivable 40,962            -                  40,962            
Loans Receivable -                  -                    
Inventory 55,472            -                  55,472            

Total Current Assets 5,733,983       192,306        5,926,289       

Non-Current Assets:

Net OPEB Asset (RHIA) 3,876             -                  3,876             

Capital Assets:
Land and Construction In Progress 3,517,255       -                  3,517,255       
Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation 1,913,480       -                  1,913,480       

Total Capital Assets 5,430,735       -                  5,430,735       

Total Assets 11,168,594$ 192,306$    11,360,900$ 

DEFERRED  OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES:
Pension Related Deferrals 160,125          -                  160,125          
OPEB Related Deferrals - RHIA 966                -                  966                
OPEB Related Deferrals - CIS 887                -                  887                

Total Deferred Outflow of Resources 161,978$      -$                161,978$      

LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable 14,649$          -$                14,649$          
Customer Deposits 20,194            -                  20,194            

    Total Current Liabilities 34,843            -                  34,843            

Long-Term Liabilities:
Noncurrent Portion of Long-Term Liabilities:
Net Pension Liability 259,151          -                  259,151          
Net OPEB Obligation - CIS 15,306            -                  15,306            

    Total Long-Term Liabilities 274,457          -                  274,457          

Total Liabilities 309,300$      -$                309,300$      

DEFERRED  INFLOW OF RESOURCES:
Pension Related Deferrals 281,307          -                  281,307          
OPEB Related Deferrals - RHIA 1,935             -                  1,935             

Total Deferred Inflow of Resources 283,242$      -$                283,242$      

NET POSITION:
Net Investment in Capital Assets 5,430,735$      -$                5,430,735$      
Restricted for:

Capital Projects -                    192,306        192,306          
Net Pension Asset 3,876             -                  3,876             

Unrestricted 5,303,419       -                  5,303,419       

Total Net Position 10,738,030$ 192,306$    10,930,336$ 

Water 
Reserve Fund

CITY OF HARRISBURG

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

WATER FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022
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Water Fund
Water 

Reserve Fund
Total Water 

Utility
OPERATING REVENUES:

Charges for Services:
Water Charges 625,230$        -$                625,230$        
Other Revenue 23,920            -                  23,920            

Total Operating Revenues 649,150        -                  649,150        

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personnel Services 427,923          -                  427,923          
Materials and Supplies 225,671          19,024          244,695          
Depreciation 121,850          -                  121,850          

Total Operating Expenses 775,444        19,024        794,468        

Operating Income (Loss) (126,294)         (19,024)        (145,318)         

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Interest Income 56,186            410              56,596            

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 56,186          410             56,596          

Income Before Other Revenues, Expenses, and Transfers (70,108)          (18,614)        (88,722)          

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS:
Transfers In 42,000            -                  42,000            
Transfers (Out) (46,300)          -                  (46,300)          

Total Capital Contributions and Transfers (4,300)           -                  (4,300)           

Change in Net Position (74,408)          (18,614)        (93,022)          

Net Position, July 1, 2021 10,812,438      210,920        11,023,358      

Net Position, June 30, 2022 10,738,030$ 192,306$    10,930,336$ 

CITY OF HARRISBURG

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

WATER FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022
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Actual Variance with
Amounts Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts (Budgetary Basis) Over

Original Final (See Note 1) (Under)

REVENUES:

Charges for Services 588,000$        588,000$    625,230$            37,230$        

Investment Revenue 60,340            60,340        56,186                (4,154)          

Other Revenue 19,800            19,800        23,920                4,120            

Total Revenues 668,140        668,140    705,336            37,196        

EXPENDITURES:

Personnel Services 525,240          525,240      437,570              (87,670)         

Materials and supplies 245,250          245,250      209,234              (36,016)         

Capital Outlay 7,606,200        7,606,200   990,078              (6,616,122)    
Contingency 52,610            52,610        -                        (52,610)         

Total Expenditures 8,429,300     8,429,300 1,636,882         (6,792,418)  

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

Over Expenditures (7,761,160)      (7,761,160)  (931,546)             6,829,614      

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES / (USES):

Operating Transfer In 42,000            42,000        42,000                -                  

Operating Transfer (Out) (46,300)           (46,300)      (46,300)               -                  

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (4,300)           (4,300)       (4,300)               -                  

Net Change In Fund Balance (7,765,460)      (7,765,460)  (935,846)             6,829,614      

Fund Balance - July 1, 2021 8,150,000        8,150,000   6,634,985            (1,515,015)    

Fund Balance - June 30, 2022 384,540$      384,540$  5,699,139$       5,314,599$ 

Reconciliation to generally accepted accounting principles basis

Net Change in Fund Balance  - from above (935,846)             

Change in Pension Expense 9,646                  

Capital outlay that is capitalized 973,642              

Depreciation Expense (121,850)             

Change in Net Position as Reported in Proprietary Funds Statement

   of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position (74,408)$             

CITY OF HARRISBURG

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

WATER FUND

and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
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Actual Variance with
Amounts Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts (Budgetary Basis) Over

Original Final (See Note 1) (Under)

REVENUES:

Investment Revenue 1,020$     1,020$       410$                  (610)$           

Total Revenues 1,020     1,020        410                   (610)            

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Outlay 233,420   233,420      19,024                (214,396)       

Total Expenditures 233,420 233,420    19,024              (214,396)     

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

Over Expenditures (232,400)  (232,400)    (18,614)               213,786        

Net Change In Fund Balance (232,400)  (232,400)    (18,614)               213,786        

Fund Balance - July 1, 2021 232,400   232,400      210,920              (21,480)         

Fund Balance - June 30, 2022 -$           -$              192,306$          192,306$    

Reconciliation to generally accepted accounting principles basis

Net change in fund balance from above (18,614)               

Change in Net Position as Reported in Proprietary Funds Statement

   of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position (18,614)$             

CITY OF HARRISBURG

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, 

WATER RESERVE FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
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Sewer Fund
Sewer 

Reserve Fund
Total       

Sewer Utility
ASSETS:

Current Assets:
Cash and Investments 382,089$       628,532$       1,010,621$     
Accounts Receivable 69,531           -                   69,531           
Inventory 5,056            -                   5,056            

Total Current Assets 456,676         628,532         1,085,208      

Non-Current Assets:
Restricted Cash -                   125,155         125,155         
Net OPEB Asset (RHIA) 4,697            -                   4,697            

Total Non-Current Assets 4,697            125,155         129,852         

Capital Assets:
Land and Construction In Progress 627,441         -                   627,441         
Depreciable Assets, Net of Depreciation 3,596,295      -                   3,596,295      

Total Capital Assets 4,223,736      -                   4,223,736      

Total Assets 4,685,109$  753,687$     5,438,796$  

DEFERRED  OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES:
Pension Related Deferrals 145,716         -                   145,716         

Total Deferred Outflow of Resources 145,716$     -$                 145,716$     

LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable 14,144$         1,420$           15,564$         
Compensated Absences Payable 9,007            -                   9,007            
Accrued Interest Payable 4,576            -                   4,576            
Customer Deposits 16,385           -                   16,385           
Current Portion of Long-Term Liabilities:

Bond Payable 38,767           -                   38,767           

    Total Current Liabilities 82,879           1,420            84,299           

Long-Term Liabilities:
Noncurrent Portion of Long-Term Liabilities:

Bonds Payable (Net of unamortized premium) 2,051,533      -                   2,051,533      
Net Pension Liability 494,842         -                   494,842         

    Total Long-Term Liabilities 2,546,375      -                   2,546,375      

Total Liabilities 2,629,254$  1,420$         2,630,674$  

DEFERRED  INFLOW OF RESOURCES:
Pension Related Deferrals 44,744           -                   44,744           
OPEB Related Deferrals - RHIA 966               -                   966               

Total Deferred Inflow of Resources 45,710$       -$                 45,710$       

NET POSITION:
Net Investment in Capital Assets 2,133,436$     -$                 2,133,436$     
Restricted for:

Debt Service -                   125,155         125,155         
Capital Projects -                   627,112         627,112         
Net Pension Asset 4,697            -                   4,697            

Unrestricted 17,728           -                   17,728           

Total Net Position 2,155,861$  752,267$     2,908,128$  

CITY OF HARRISBURG

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

SEWER FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020
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Sewer Fund
Sewer 

Reserve Fund
Total      

Sewer Utility
OPERATING REVENUES:

Charges for Services:
Sewer Charges 798,479$      -$                798,479$      

Other Revenue 6,432           -                  6,432           

Total Operating Revenues 804,911      -                  804,911      

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personnel Services 428,616        -                  428,616        
Materials and Supplies 169,823        -                  169,823        
Depreciation 238,303        -                  238,303        

Total Operating Expenses 836,742      -                  836,742      

Operating Income (Loss) (31,831)        -                  (31,831)        

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Interest Income 1,710           410              2,120           
Interest Expense (67,836)        -                  (67,836)        

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) (66,126)       410             (65,716)       

Income Before Other Revenues, Expenses, and Transfer (97,957)        410              (97,547)        

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS:
Transfers In 53,000          -                  53,000          
Transfers (Out) (46,300)        -                  (46,300)        
Capital Asset Transfers In 140,854        -                  140,854        
Capital Asset Transfers (Out) -                  (140,854)       (140,854)       

Total Capital Contributions and Transfers 147,554      (140,854)     6,700          

Change In Net Position 49,597          (140,444)       (90,847)        

Net Position, July 1, 2021 2,477,873     541,674        3,019,547     

Net Position, June 30, 2022 2,527,470$ 401,230$    2,928,700$ 

CITY OF HARRISBURG

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

SEWER FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022
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Actual Variance with
Amounts Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts (Budgetary Basis) Over
Original Final (See Note 1) (Under)

REVENUES:
Charges for Services 736,100$        736,100$       798,479$            62,379$        
Investment Revenue 3,660             3,660             1,710                  (1,950)          
Other Revenue 6,940             6,940             6,432                  (508)             

Total Revenues 746,700        746,700       806,621            59,921        

EXPENDITURES:
Personnel Services 535,240         535,240         437,567              (97,673)         
Materials and supplies 262,470         262,470         187,865              (74,605)         
Capital Outlay 70,000           70,000           38,578                (31,422)         
Debt Service:

Principal -                   -                   45,000                45,000          
Interest 119,100         119,100         74,100                (45,000)         

Contingency 26,000           26,000           -                        (26,000)         

Total Expenditures 1,012,810     1,012,810    783,110            (229,700)     

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over Expenditures (266,110)        (266,110)        23,511                289,621        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES / (USES):

Operating Transfer In 53,000           53,000           53,000                -                  

Operating Transfer (Out) (46,300)          (46,300)          (46,300)               -                  

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 6,700            6,700           6,700                -                  

Net Change In Fund Balance (259,410)        (259,410)        30,211                289,621        

Fund Balance - July 1, 2021 326,700         326,700         373,748              47,048          

Fund Balance - June 30, 2022 67,290$        67,290$       403,959$          336,669$    

Reconciliation to generally accepted accounting principles basis

Net change in fund balance from above 30,211                
Change in Compensated Absences 20,574                
Change in Accrued Interest (43)                     
Change in Pension and OPEB Expense (11,623)               
Debt Principal Payments 45,000                
Current Year Amoritization of Bond Premium 6,307                  
Capital outlay that is capitalized 197,474              
Depreciation Expense (238,303)             

Change in Net Position as Reported in Proprietary Funds Statement
   of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 49,597$              

CITY OF HARRISBURG

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, 

SEWER FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
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Actual Variance with
Amounts Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts (Budgetary Basis) Over

Original Final (See Note 1) (Under)

REVENUES:

Investment Revenue 1,020$        1,020$        410$                  (610)$           

Total Revenues 1,020        1,020         410                   (610)            

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Outlay 554,120      554,120       140,854              (413,266)       

Total Expenditures 554,120    554,120     140,854            (413,266)     

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

Over Expenditures (553,100)     (553,100)     (140,444)             412,656        

Net Change In Fund Balance (553,100)     (553,100)     (140,444)             412,656        

Fund Balance - July 1, 2021 553,100      553,100       541,674              (11,426)         

Fund Balance - June 30, 2022 -$              -$               401,230$          401,230$    

Reconciliation to generally accepted accounting principles basis

Net change in fund balance from above (140,444)             

Change in Net Position as Reported in Proprietary Funds Statement

   of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position (140,444)$           

CITY OF HARRISBURG

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, 

SEWER RESERVE FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
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Community & 
Economic 

Development Fund

Office 
Equipment 

Fund

Equipment 
Reserve 

Fund

Library 
Fund

Bike Path 
Reserve 

Fund

Storm Drain 
Reserve 

Fund

Trans-
portation 

SDC Fund
Parks SDC 

Fund
Storm SDC 

Fund
Water 

SDC Fund
Sewer SDC 

Fund
Building 

Permit Fund
Electrical 

Permit Fund Total

ASSETS:
Cash & Investments 340,492$             15,351$  278,836$ 95,661$ 43,647$ 288,447$  378,923$ 93,222$   109,986$  370,679$ 866,300$  19,234$    3,971$      2,904,749$ 
Accounts Receivable 41                        -             -               -             -             5,713        -               -               -               -               -                -                -                5,754          
Assessment Receivable -                          -             -               -             -             -                -               -               -               -               86,036      -                -                86,036        
Deposits -                          -             -               -             -             -                -               138,916   -               -               -                -                -                138,916      

Total Assets 340,533$             15,351$  278,836$ 95,661$ 43,647$ 294,160$  378,923$ 232,139$ 109,986$  370,679$ 952,336$  19,234$    3,971$      3,135,456$ 

LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable 552                      1,977      -               337        -             61,515      -               7,474       -               -               -                4,307        305           76,467        

Total Liabilities 552                      1,977      -               337        -             61,515      -               7,474       -               -               -                4,307        305           76,467        

DEFERRED  INFLOW OF RESOURCES:
Uncollected Assessments -                          -             -               -             -             -                -               -               -               -               86,036      -                -                86,036        

Total Deferred Inflow of Resources -                          -             -               -             -             -                -               -               -               -               86,036      -                -                86,036        

FUND BALANCES:
Restricted for:

Capital Projects -                          -             -               -             -             -                378,923   224,665   109,986    370,679   866,300    -                -                1,950,553   
Commited for:

Parks and Recreation Programs -                          -             -               -             43,647   -                -               -               -               -               -                -                -                43,647        
Community Development Projects -                          -             -               95,324   -             -                -               -               -               -               -                -                -                95,324        
Equipment Acquisition 339,981               13,374    278,836   -             -             -                -               -               -               -               -                -                -                632,191      
Public Works -                          -             -               -             -             232,645    -               -               -               -               -                14,927      3,666        251,238      

Total Fund Balances 339,981               13,374    278,836   95,324   43,647   232,645    378,923   224,665   109,986    370,679   866,300    14,927      3,666        2,972,953   

340,533$             15,351$  278,836$ 95,661$ 43,647$ 294,160$  378,923$ 232,139$ 109,986$  370,679$ 952,336$  19,234$    3,971$      3,135,456$ 
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, 
and Fund Balances

CITY OF HARRISBURG

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022
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Community & 
Economic 

Development Fund

Office 
Equipment 

Fund

Equipment 
Reserve 

Fund
Library 
Fund

Bike Path 
Reserve 

Fund

Storm Drain 
Reserve 

Fund

Trans-
portation 

SDC
 Fund

Parks 
SDC 
Fund

Storm 
SDC 
Fund

Water 
SDC 
Fund

Sewer 
SDC
 Fund

Building 
Permit Fund

Electrical 
Permit Fund Total

REVENUES:
Taxes and Assessments -$                        -$           -$             -$           -$           67,737$    -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$              -$              67,737$      
Intergovernmental -                          -             -               -             2,935     -                -               -               -               -               -               -                -                2,935          
Charges for Services -                          -             -               -             -             -                19,825     13,900     3,600       33,776     28,719     33,915      6,330        140,065      
Investment Revenue 451                      36           370          101        61          531           612          451          165          410          1,223       -                -                4,411          
Other Revenue 12,391                 -             -               5,020     -             -                -               -               -               -               -               -                -                17,411        

Total Revenues 12,842                 36           370          5,121     2,996     68,268      20,437     14,351     3,765       34,186     29,942     33,915      6,330        232,559      

EXPENDITURES:
General Government 8,716                   55,764    -               -             -             -                -               -               -               -               -               -                -                64,480        
Highways and Street -                          -             -               -             -             8,817        -               -               -               -               -               18,388      4,014        31,219        
Culture and Recreation -                          -             -               71,825   -             -                -               -               -               -               -               -                -                71,825        
Capital Outlay 1,083                   14,000    53,126     -             -             110,656    1,598       39,369     -               -               -               -                -                219,832      

Total Expenditures 9,799                   69,764    53,126     71,825   -             119,473    1,598       39,369     -               -               -               18,388      4,014        387,356      

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over Expenditures 3,043                   (69,728)  (52,756)    (66,704)  2,996     (51,205)     18,839     (25,018)    3,765       34,186     29,942     15,527      2,316        (154,797)     

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating Transfers In 120,000               55,000    78,900     85,000   -             5,000        -               -               -               -               -               5,000        2,500        351,400      
Operating Transfers (Out) -                          -             -               -             -             -                -               -               -               -               -               (5,600)       (1,150)       (6,750)         

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 120,000               55,000    78,900     85,000   -             5,000        -               -               -               -               -               (600)          1,350        344,650      

 Net Change in Fund Balances 123,043               (14,728)  26,144     18,296   2,996     (46,205)     18,839     (25,018)    3,765       34,186     29,942     14,927      3,666        189,853      

Fund Balances - July 1, 2021 216,938               28,102    252,692   77,028   40,651   278,850    360,084   249,683   106,221   336,493   836,358   -                -                2,783,100   

Fund Balances - June 30, 2022 339,981$             13,374$  278,836$ 95,324$ 43,647$ 232,645$  378,923$ 224,665$ 109,986$ 370,679$ 866,300$ 14,927$    3,666$      2,972,953$ 

CITY OF HARRISBURG

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balances

NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022
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Actual Variance with
Amounts Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts (Budgetary Basis) Over
Original Final (See Note 1) (Under)

REVENUES:

Investment Revenue 1,120$       1,120$       451$              (669)$             

Other Revenue 12,500       12,500       12,391            (109)               

Total Revenues 13,620      13,620      12,842          (778)              

EXPENDITURES:

Materials and Services 71,700       71,700       8,716             (62,984)          

Capital Outlay 226,350     226,350     1,083             (225,267)         

Contingency -               -               -                    -                    

Total Expenditures 298,050    298,050    9,799            (288,251)       

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

Over Expenditures (284,430)    (284,430)    3,043             287,473          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES / (USES):

Operating Transfer In 120,000     120,000     120,000          -                    

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 120,000    120,000    120,000        -                    

Net Change in Fund Balance (164,430)    (164,430)    123,043          287,473          

Fund Balance - July 1, 2021 164,430     164,430     216,938          52,508            

Fund Balance - June 30, 2022 -$             -$             339,981$      339,981$      

CITY OF HARRISBURG

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, 

COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
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Actual Variance with
Amounts Final Budget

(Budgetary Basis) Over

Original Final (See Note 1) (Under)
REVENUES:

Investment Revenue 90$           90$           36$                (54)$             

Total Revenues 90             90             36                 (54)              

EXPENDITURES:

Materials and Services 56,050       56,050       55,764            (286)             

Capital Outlay 24,000       24,000       14,000            (10,000)         

Total Expenditures 80,050      80,050      69,764          (10,286)       

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

Over Expenditures (79,960)      (79,960)      (69,728)          10,232          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES / (USES):

Operating Transfer In 55,000       55,000       55,000            -                  

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 55,000      55,000      55,000          -                  

Net Change In Fund Balance (24,960)      (24,960)      (14,728)          10,232          

Fund Balance - July 1, 2021 24,960       24,960       28,102            3,142            

Fund Balance - June 30, 2022 -$             -$             13,374$        13,374$      

CITY OF HARRISBURG

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

OFFICE EQUIPMENT RESERVE FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Budgeted Amounts
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Actual Variance with
Amounts Final Budget

(Budgetary Basis) Over

Original Final (See Note 1) (Under)
REVENUES:

Investment Revenue 920$          920$          370$              (550)$             

Total Revenues 920           920           370               (550)              

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Outlay 328,260     328,260     53,126            (275,134)         

Total Expenditures 328,260    328,260    53,126          (275,134)       

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

Over Expenditures (327,340)    (327,340)    (52,756)          274,584          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES / (USES):

Operating Transfer In 78,900       78,900       78,900            -                    

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 78,900      78,900      78,900          -                    

Net Change In Fund Balance (248,440)    (248,440)    26,144            274,584          

Fund Balance - July 1, 2021 248,440     248,440     252,692          4,252             

Fund Balance - June 30, 2022 -$             -$             278,836$      278,836$      

CITY OF HARRISBURG

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund  Balance - Budget and Actual

EQUIPMENT RESERVE FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Budgeted Amounts
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Actual Variance with
Amounts Final Budget

(Budgetary Basis) Over

Original Final (See Note 1) (Under)

REVENUES:

Investment Revenue 250$          250$          101$              (149)$             

Miscellaneous Revenue 1,950         1,950         5,020             3,070             

Total Revenues 2,200        2,200        5,121            2,921            

EXPENDITURES:

Personnel Services 59,652       59,652       49,231            (10,421)          

Materials and Services 28,315       28,315       22,594            (5,721)            

Capital Outlay 5,000         5,000         -                    (5,000)            

Contingency 6,205         6,205         -                    (6,205)            

Total Expenditures 99,172      99,172      71,825          (27,347)         

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

Over Expenditures (96,972)      (96,972)      (66,704)          30,268            

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES / (USES):

Operating Transfer In 85,000       85,000       85,000            -                    

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 85,000      85,000      85,000          -                    

Net Change In Fund Balance (11,972)      (11,972)      18,296            30,268            

Fund Balance - July 1, 2021 74,850       74,850       77,028            2,178             

Fund Balance - June 30, 2022 62,878$    62,878$    95,324$        32,446$        

CITY OF HARRISBURG

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

LIBRARY FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Budgeted Amounts
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Actual Variance with

Amounts Final Budget

(Budgetary Basis) Over

Original Final (See Note 1) (Under)
REVENUES:

Intergovernmental 2,800$       2,800$       2,935$            135$              
Investment Revenue 150           150           61                  (89)                

Total Revenues 2,950        2,950        2,996            46                 

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Outlay 43,510       43,510       -                    (43,510)          

Total Expenditures 43,510      43,510      -                    (43,510)         

Net Change In Fund Balance (40,560)      (40,560)      2,996             43,556            

Fund Balance - July 1, 2021 40,560       40,560       40,651            91                  

Fund Balance - June 30, 2022 -$             -$             43,647$        43,647$        

CITY OF HARRISBURG

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

BIKE PATH RESERVE FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Budgeted Amounts
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Actual Variance with
Amounts Final Budget

(Budgetary Basis) Over

Original Final (See Note 1) (Under)
REVENUES:

Taxes and Assessments 66,000$     66,000$     67,737$          1,737$          

Investment Revenue 1,320         1,320         531                (789)             

Total Revenues 67,320      67,320      68,268          948             

EXPENDITURES:

Materials and Services 20,000       20,000       8,817             (11,183)         

Capital Outlay 276,645     276,645     110,656          (165,989)       

Total Expenditures 296,645    296,645    119,473        (177,172)     

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

Over Expenditures (229,325)    (229,325)    (51,205)          178,120        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES / (USES):

Operating Transfer In 5,000         5,000         5,000             -                  

Total Other Financing Sources 5,000        5,000        5,000            -                  

Net Change In Fund Balance (224,325)    (224,325)    (46,205)          178,120        

Fund Balance - July 1, 2021 224,325     224,325     278,850          54,525          

Fund Balance - June 30, 2022 -$             -$             232,645$      232,645$    

Reconciliation to Generally Accepted Accounting Principal Basis (GAAP):

Net change in fund balance from above (46,205)          

Change in Net Position as Reported in Proprietary Funds Statement of
of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Net Position (46,205)$         

CITY OF HARRISBURG

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

STORM DRAIN RESERVE FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Budgeted Amounts
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Actual Variance with
Amounts Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts (Budgetary Basis) Over

Original Final (See Note 1) (Under)

REVENUES:

System Development Charges 15,225$     15,225$     19,825$         4,600$           

Investment Revenue 1,520         1,520         612               (908)              

Total Revenues 16,745      16,745      20,437         3,692           

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Outlay 365,545     365,545     1,598            (363,947)        

Total Expenditures 365,545    365,545    1,598           (363,947)      

Net Change in Fund Balance (348,800)    (348,800)    18,839           367,639         

Fund Balance - July 1, 2021 348,800     348,800     360,084         11,284           

Fund Balance - June 30, 2022 -$             -$             378,923$     378,923$     

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

CITY OF HARRISBURG

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT RESERVE FUND

Page 135

3.



 

- 91 - 

  

Actual Variance with
Amounts Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts (Budgetary Basis) Over

Original Final (See Note 1) (Under)

REVENUES:

System Development Charges 9,000$       9,000$       13,900$         4,900$           

Investment Revenue 1,120         1,120         451               (669)              

Total Revenues 10,120      10,120      14,351         4,231           

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Outlay 256,120     256,120     39,369           (216,751)        

Total Expenditures 256,120    256,120    39,369         (216,751)      

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

Over Expenditures (246,000)    (246,000)    (25,018)         220,982         

Net Change in Fund Balance (246,000)    (246,000)    (25,018)         220,982         

Fund Balance - July 1, 2021 246,000     246,000     249,683         3,683            

Fund Balance - June 30, 2022 -$             -$             224,665$     224,665$     

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

CITY OF HARRISBURG

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

PARKS SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT RESERVE FUND
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Actual Variance with
Amounts Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts (Budgetary Basis) Over

Original Final (See Note 1) (Under)

REVENUES:

System Development Charges 2,250$       2,250$       3,600$           1,350$           

Investment Revenue 410           410           165               (245)              

Total Revenues 2,660        2,660        3,765           1,105           

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Outlay 107,960     107,960     -                   (107,960)        

Total Expenditures 107,960    107,960    -                   (107,960)      

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

Over Expenditures (105,300)    (105,300)    3,765            109,065         

Net Change in Fund Balance (105,300)    (105,300)    3,765            109,065         

Fund Balance - July 1, 2021 105,300     105,300     106,221         921               

Fund Balance - June 30, 2022 -$             -$             109,986$     109,986$     

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

CITY OF HARRISBURG

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

STORM SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT RESERVE FUND
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Actual Variance with
Amounts Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts (Budgetary Basis) Over

Original Final (See Note 1) (Under)

REVENUES:

System Development Charges 21,110$     21,110$     33,776$         12,666$         

Investment Revenue 1,020         1,020         410               (610)              

Total Revenues 22,130      22,130      34,186         12,056         

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Outlay 350,030     350,030     -                   (350,030)        

Total Expenditures 350,030    350,030    -                   (350,030)      

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

Over Expenditures (327,900)    (327,900)    34,186           362,086         

Net Change in Fund Balance (327,900)    (327,900)    34,186           362,086         

Fund Balance - July 1, 2021 327,900     327,900     336,493         8,593            

Fund Balance - June 30, 2022 -$             -$             370,679$     370,679$     

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

CITY OF HARRISBURG

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

WATER SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT RESERVE FUND
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Actual Variance with
Amounts Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts (Budgetary Basis) Over

Original Final (See Note 1) (Under)

REVENUES:

System Development Charges 17,950$     17,950$     28,719$         10,769$         

Investment Revenue 3,040         3,040         1,223            (1,817)           

Total Revenues 20,990      20,990      29,942         8,952           

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Outlay 649,990     649,990     -                   (649,990)        

Total Expenditures 649,990    649,990    -                   (649,990)      

Net Change in Fund Balance (629,000)    (629,000)    29,942           658,942         

Fund Balance - July 1, 2021 629,000     629,000     836,358         207,358         

Fund Balance - June 30, 2022 -$             -$             866,300$     866,300$     

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

CITY OF HARRISBURG

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

SEWER SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT RESERVE FUND
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CITY OF HARRISBURG
SCHEDULE OF LONG-TERM DEBT TRANSACTIONS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Full Faith and Credit Refunding Bond, Series 2017

Current Year Activity:

Outstanding New Issues Principal Outstanding Due

Balance and Interest and Interest Balance Within

July 1, 2021 Matured Retired June 30, 2022 One Year

Principal 1,875,000$   -$                45,000$       1,830,000$      45,000$     

Interest -                  74,100         74,100         -                    72,300      

Total 1,875,000$   74,100$       119,100$      1,830,000$      117,300$   

Future Requirements:
Fiscal Year 
Ended June 

30,  Principal  Interest  Total 
Interest 

Rate

2023 45,000$       72,300$       117,300$        2.00%

2024 50,000         71,400         121,400          4.00%

2025 50,000         69,400         119,400          4.00%

2026 55,000         67,400         122,400          4.00%

2027 55,000         65,200         120,200          4.00%

2028 55,000         63,000         118,000          4.00%

2029 60,000         60,800         120,800          4.00%

2030 60,000         58,400         118,400          4.00%

2031 65,000         56,000         121,000          4.00%

2032 65,000         53,400         118,400          4.00%

2033 70,000         50,800         120,800          4.00%

2034 70,000         48,000         118,000          4.00%

2035 75,000         45,200         120,200          4.00%

2036 80,000         42,200         122,200          4.00%

2037 80,000         39,000         119,000          4.00%

2038 85,000         35,800         120,800          4.00%

2039 90,000         32,400         122,400          4.00%

2040 90,000         28,800         118,800          4.00%

2041 95,000         25,200         120,200          4.00%

2042 100,000       21,400         121,400          4.00%

2043 105,000       17,400         122,400          4.00%

2044 105,000       13,200         118,200          4.00%

2045 110,000       9,000           119,000          4.00%
2046 115,000       4,600           119,600          4.00%

Total 1,830,000$   1,050,300$   2,880,300$      

Full Faith and Credit Refunding Bond, Series 2017 entered into with US Bank for refinancing of USDA Revenue Bonds for Sewer Projects. Original 
amount $4,470,000 with an interest rate between 2.00% and 4.00%. The loan total was divided at inception between the City ($2,405,000) and City's 
Urban Renewal Agency ($2,405,000).  
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CITY OF HARRISBURG
SCHEDULE OF LONG-TERM DEBT TRANSACTIONS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

General Obligation Refunding Bond, Series 2017

Current Year Activity:

Outstanding New Issues Principal Outstanding Due

Balance and Interest and Interest Balance Within

July 1, 2021 Matured Retired June 30, 2022 One Year

Principal 795,000$      -$                35,000$        760,000$      35,000$      

Interest -                  29,600         29,600         -                  28,550        

Total 795,000$      29,600$        64,600$        760,000$      63,550$      

Future Requirements:
Fiscal Year 
Ended June 

30,  Principal  Interest  Total Interest Rate

2023 35,000$        28,550$        63,550$        3.00%

2024 35,000         27,500         62,500         3.00%

2025 35,000         26,450         61,450         3.00%

2026 40,000         25,400         65,400         3.00%

2027 40,000         24,200         64,200         3.00%

2028 40,000         23,000         63,000         4.00%

2029 40,000         21,400         61,400         4.00%

2030 45,000         19,800         64,800         4.00%

2031 45,000         18,000         63,000         4.00%

2032 45,000         16,200         61,200         4.00%

2033 50,000         14,400         64,400         4.00%

2034 50,000         12,400         62,400         4.00%

2035 55,000         10,400         65,400         4.00%

2036 55,000         8,200           63,200         4.00%

2037 60,000         6,000           66,000         4.00%

2038 60,000         3,600           63,600         4.00%
2039 30,000         1,200           31,200         4.00%

Total 760,000$      286,700$      1,046,700$   

General Obligation Bonds held by US Bank for refinancing of USDA GO Bonds and Water projects. Original balance is $930,000 with an 
interest rate between 3.00% and 4.00%. Dated August 24, 2017.  
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CITY OF HARRISBURG
SCHEDULE OF LONG-TERM DEBT TRANSACTIONS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

KS State Bank Government Finance Dept. - HRA Development Loan

Current Year Activity:

Outstanding New Issues Principal Outstanding Due

Balance and Interest and Interest Balance Within

July 1, 2021 Matured Retired June 30, 2022 One Year

Principal 120,791$          -$                120,791$      -$                -$              

Interest -                      5,414           5,414           -                  -                

Total 120,791$          5,414$         126,205$      -$                -$              

Future Requirements:

Fiscal Year 
Ended June 30,  Principal  Interest  Total Interest Rate

Total -$                -$                -$                

HRA note with KS State Bank Government Finance Department in the amount of $531,000 with an interest rate of 4.550% for 
purpose of funding private loans to urban renewal developers.  Dated September 29, 2017.
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CITY OF HARRISBURG
SCHEDULE OF LONG-TERM DEBT TRANSACTIONS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Full Faith and Credit Project Bond, Series 2017 - HRA Development Projects

Current Year Activity:

Outstanding New Issues Principal Outstanding Due

Balance and Interest and Interest Balance Within

July 1, 2021 Matured Retired June 30, 2022 One Year

Principal 2,405,000$     -$                -$                2,405,000$      120,000$   

Interest -                    93,800         93,800         -                    93,800      

Total 2,405,000$     93,800$       93,800$       2,405,000$      213,800$   

Future Requirements:
Fiscal Year 

Ended June 30,  Principal  Interest  Total 
Interest 

Rate

2023 120,000$      93,800$       213,800$        2.00%

2024 125,000       91,400         216,400          4.00%

2025 130,000       86,400         216,400          4.00%

2026 135,000       81,200         216,200          4.00%
2027 140,000       75,800         215,800          4.00%

2028 145,000       70,200         215,200          4.00%

2029 150,000       64,400         214,400          4.00%

2030 160,000       58,400         218,400          4.00%

2031 165,000       52,000         217,000          4.00%

2032 170,000       45,400         215,400          4.00%

2033 180,000       38,600         218,600          4.00%

2034 185,000       31,400         216,400          4.00%

2035 190,000       24,000         214,000          4.00%

2036 200,000       16,400         216,400          4.00%
2037 210,000       8,400           218,400          4.00%

Total 2,405,000$   837,800$      3,242,800$      

HRA Loan from the City of Harrisburg . Original amount $2,405,000 with an interest rate of 2.00% to 4.00%. This is the Urban Renewal 
Agency's share of Full Faith and Credit Refunding Bond, Series 2017 entered into with US Bank for refinancing of USDA Revenue Bonds for 
Sewer Projects. 
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CITY OF HARRISBURG
SCHEDULE OF LONG-TERM DEBT TRANSACTIONS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2019 

Current Year Activity:

Outstanding New Issues Principal Outstanding Due

Balance and Interest and Interest Balance Within

July 1, 2021 Matured Retired June 30, 2022 One Year

Principal 7,300,000$   -$                45,000$        7,255,000$   55,000$      

Interest -                  300,562        300,562        -                  299,213      

Total 7,300,000$   300,562$      345,562$      7,255,000$   354,213$    

Future Requirements:
Fiscal Year 
Ended June 

30,  Principal  Interest  Total Interest Rate

2023 55,000$        299,213$      354,213$      3.00%

2024 70,000         297,563        367,563        4.00%

2025 85,000         294,763        379,763        4.00%

2026 100,000        291,363        391,363        4.00%

2027 115,000        287,363        402,363        4.00%

2028 130,000        282,763        412,763        4.00%

2029 150,000        277,563        427,563        4.00%

2030 165,000        271,563        436,563        4.00%

2031 185,000        264,963        449,963        4.00%

2032 210,000        257,563        467,563        4.00%

2033 230,000        249,163        479,163        4.00%

2034 255,000        239,963        494,963        4.00%

2035 280,000        229,763        509,763        4.00%

2036 305,000        218,563        523,563        4.00%

2037 335,000        206,363        541,363        4.00%

2038 365,000        192,963        557,963        4.00%

2039 395,000        178,363        573,363        4.00%

2040 430,000        162,563        592,563        4.25%

2041 465,000        144,288        609,288        4.25%

2042 500,000        124,525        624,525        4.25%

2043 540,000        103,275        643,275        4.25%

2044 585,000        80,325         665,325        4.25%

2045 630,000        55,463         685,463        4.25%
2046 675,000        28,688         703,688        4.25%

Total 7,255,000$   5,038,938$   12,293,938$  

On August 21, 2019, the City issued General Obligation Bonds, Series 2019 to finance capital costs related to the City's water system in 
the amount of $7,420,000. The Bonds are held by US Bank and carry an interest rate between 3.0 and 4.25%. Interest payments are due 
June 1 and December 1 with a principal payment due June 1 of each year, with the first interest payment due December 1, 2019. 
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CITY OF HARRISBURG 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

REQUIRED BY OREGON STATE REGULATIONS 
As of June 30, 2022 

- 102 -

To the Governing Body of the City of Harrisburg 
Harrisburg, Oregon 

We have audited the basic financial statements of the City of Harrisburg as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022 
and have issued our report thereon dated March 7, 2023. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing stand-
ards generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Compliance 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Harrisburg’ financial statements are free of ma-
terial misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-000 
through 162-10-320 of the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, noncompliance with 
which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statements amounts.  However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do 
not express such an opinion.  

We performed procedures to the extent we considered necessary to address the required comments and disclosures 
which included, but were not limited to the following:  

 Deposit of public funds with financial institutions (ORS Chapter 295).
 Indebtedness limitations, restrictions and repayment.
 Budgets legally required (ORS Chapter 294).
 Insurance and fidelity bonds in force or required by law.
 Programs funded from outside sources.
 Highway revenues used for public highways and roads (ORS Chapters 294, 368 & 373).
 Authorized investment of surplus funds (ORS Chapter 294).
 Public contracts and purchasing (ORS Chapters 279A, 279B, 279C).

In connection with our testing nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe the City was not in substantial 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, including the provisions of Oregon 
Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-000 through 162-10-320 of the Minimum 
Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, except for: 

- The City over expended appropriations in the 2 funds. See note in Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.

OAR 162-10-0230 Internal Control 
In planning and performing my audit, we considered the City‘s internal control over financial reporting as a basis for 
designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting.  Ac-
cordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City internal control over financial reporting. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council and management of City of Harrisburg 
and the Oregon Secretary of State and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these parties. 

Steve Tuchscherer, CPA 
Umpqua Valley Financial  
Roseburg, Oregon 
March 7, 2023 

Page 147

3.


	Top
	1.	LCSO Report for March 2023
	Staff Report-LCSO March 2023 4.25.23
	Harrisburg Contract Report March 2023

	2.	Coburg Police Department 2023 1st Quarter Stats Report
	Staff Report-Coburg Police 2023 1st Quarter Stats Report 4.25.23
	Harrisburg 1st Quarter stats January February March 2023

	3.	Staff Report - Fiscal year 2021-2022 Audit
	Staff Report - FY 2021-2022 Auditors Report
	Exhibit A FY 2021-2022 Audit Report

	4.	Camping Restrictions Executive Session
	Bottom

